

# THE CITY RECORD

Official Journal of The City of New York

THE CITY RECORD

**PRICE \$4.00** 

#### **VOLUME CXL NUMBER 206**

TABLE OF CONTENTS

# THURSDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2013

| PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS            |
|---------------------------------------|
| Queens Borough President              |
| City Planning Commission              |
| Community Boards3029                  |
| Landmarks Preservation Commission3030 |
| Transportation                        |
|                                       |

| Office of Citywide Purchasing 3031        |
|-------------------------------------------|
| Housing Preservation and Development 3031 |
| Police                                    |
| PROCUREMENT                               |

Administration for Children's Services .3032

Citywide Administrative Services .....3032

 $Asset\ Management\ \dots\dots\dots\dots3031$ 

| Vendor Lists                                |
|---------------------------------------------|
| Design and Construction                     |
| Contracts                                   |
| Financial Information Services Agency .3032 |
| Health and Hospitals Corporation 3032       |

Health and Mental Hygiene .........3032

Agency Chief Contracting Officer ....3032

| Revenue and Conces | sions |
|--------------------|-------|
| Transportation     | 3033  |
| Bridges            | 3033  |

#### AGENCY PUBLIC HEARINGS

| MOZNOT TOBLIC IIZMIMOS              |
|-------------------------------------|
| Small Business Serivces             |
| Youth and Community Development3033 |

# SPECIAL MATERIALS

| Changes in Personnel | 3033 |
|----------------------|------|

**READER'S GUIDE** ......3036

THE CITY RECORD

PROPERTY DISPOSITION

Citywide Administrative Services . . . . . 3031

# MICHAEL R. BLOOMBERG, Mayor

EDNA WELLS HANDY, Commissioner, Department of Citywide Administrative Services. **ELI BLACHMAN,** Editor of The City Record.

Published Monday through Friday, except legal holidays by the Department of Citywide Administrative Services of the City of New York under Authority of Section 1066 of the New York City Charter.

Subscription–\$500 a year; daily, \$4.00 a copy (\$5.00 by mail)

**Editorial Office** 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor New York N.Y. 10007-1602 Telephone (212) 669-8252

Subscription Changes/Information 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor New York N.Y. 10007-1602 Telephone (212) 669-8252

The City of New York Home Page provides Internet access via the world wide web to THE DAILY CITY RECORD http://www.nyc.gov/cityrecord

Periodicals Postage Paid at New York, N.Y. POSTMASTER: Send address changes to THE CITY RECORD, 1 Centre Street, 17th Floor, New York, N.Y. 10007 - 1602

# PUBLIC HEARINGS AND MEETINGS

See Also: Procurement; Agency Rules

# **QUEENS BOROUGH PRESIDENT**

PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Public Hearing will be held by the Borough President of Queens, Helen Marshall, on Thursday, October 24, 2013 at 10:30 A.M., in the Borough President's Conference Room located at 120-55 Queens Boulevard, Kew Gardens, New York 11424, on the following

NOTE: Individuals requesting Sign Language Interpreters should contact the Borough President's Office, (718) 286-2860, TDD users should call (718) 286-2656, no later than FIVE BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE PUBLIC HEARING.

CD# 09 AND 10 - ULURP #C140079 ZMQ - IN THE MATTER of an application submitted by the Department of City Planning, pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the NYC Charter, for an amendment of the zoning map to rezone all or portions of 530-blocks in the Ozone Park Study area generally bounded by Rockaway Boulevard, Atlantic Avenue, and 101st Avenue to the north; the Van Wyck Expressway and Lefferts Boulevard to the east; the Belt Parkway to the south; and the Brooklyn borough line to the west, zoning maps 18a, 18b, 18c, and 18d, Borough of Queens. (CEQR application 14DCP027Q).

o18-24

# CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT RESOLUTIONS Have been adopted by the City Planning Commission Scheduling public hearings on the following matters to be held in Spector Hall, 22 Reade Street, New York, NY, on Wednesday, November 6, 2013 at 10:00 A.M.

# BOROUGH OF THE BRONX Nos. 1 & 2 ST. PATRICK'S HOME No. 1

CD8 C 110102 ZSX

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by St. Patrick's Home for the Aged and Infirm pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for the grant of a special permit pursuant to Section 74-90 of the Zoning Resolution to allow a 4-story enlargement of an existing 8story nursing home on property located at 66 Van Cortlandt Park South (Block 3252, Lot 76) in an R7-1 District.

Plans for this proposal are on file with the City Planning Commission and may be seen in Room 3N, 22 Reade Street, New York, NY 10007.

C 140051 ZSX

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by St. Patrick's Home for the Aged and Infirm pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for the grant of a special permit pursuant to Section 74-90 of the Zoning Resolution to legalize a 260-bed nursing home within an existing 8-story building on property located at 66 Van Cortlandt Park South (Block 3252, Lot 76) in an R7-1 District.

Plans for this proposal are on file with the City Planning Commission and may be seen in Room 3N, 22 Reade Street, New York, NY 10007.

# Nos. 3 & 4 **ARTSBRIDGE**

C 140044 PQX

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the Department of Housing Preservation and Development, pursuant to Section 197-c of the New York City Charter, for the acquisition of property located at 1448 Plimpton Avenue (Block 2874, Lot 27).

# No. 4

C 140045 HAX

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the Department of Housing Preservation and Development

- 1) pursuant to Article 16 of the General Municipal Law of New York State for:
  - the designation of property located at 1446-1458 Plimpton Avenue (Block 2874, Lots 3, 6, 8 and part of 10) as an Urban Development Action Area; and
  - an Urban Development Action Area Project for such area; and
- 2) pursuant to Section 197-c of the New York City Charter for the disposition of Block 2874, Lots 3, 6, 8, 27 and part of 10, to a developer to be selected by

to facilitate the construction of a seven-story senior residence with approximately 61 dwelling units and community facility

#### BOROUGH OF QUEENS No. 5

#### DISPOSITION OF CITY-OWNED PROPERTY C140018 PPQ

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the Department of Citywide Administrative Services (DCAS), pursuant to Section 197-c of New York City Charter, for the disposition of four (4) city-owned properties located at Block 5281, Lot 113, Block 4971, Lot 32, Block 3935, Lot 101 and Block 4699, Lot 32, pursuant to zoning.

# DISPOSITION OF CITY-OWNED PROPERTY C140017 PPQ

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the Department of Citywide Administrative Services (DCAS), pursuant to Section 197-c of New York City Charter, for the disposition of one city-owned property located at 135-15 40th Road (Block 5036, Lot 50), pursuant to zoning.

# OZONE PARK REZONING

C 140079 ZMQ

IN THE MATTER OF an application submitted by the City of New York Department of City Planning pursuant to Sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter for the amendment of the Zoning Map, Section Nos. 18a, 18b, 18c

#### A.

- eliminating from within an existing R4A District a C1-2 District bounded by a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 135th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and 133rd Street;
- eliminating from within an existing R5 District a 2. C1-2 District bounded by:
  - a line 150 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, a line midway between 83rd Street and 84th Street, a line 280 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, 84th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, and 83rd Street;
  - a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 99th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 93rd Street; and
  - a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, Van Wyck Expressway, Liberty Avenue, 133rd Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and
- eliminating from within an existing R3-1 District a C2-2 District bounded by:
  - 91st Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 77th Street, and Rockaway Boulevard; and
  - a line 150 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 150 feet northerly of Atlantic Avenue, 81st Street, Atlantic Avenue, Rockaway Boulevard, and 79th
- eliminating from within an existing R4-1 District a C2-2 District bounded by:
  - a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 103rd Street, a line 150 southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and a line midway between 102nd Street and 101st Street;
  - a line 150 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, a line midway between 105th Street and 106th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, and 102nd Street; and
  - a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, a line midway between 112th Street and 113th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 105th
- eliminating from within an existing R4A District a 5. C2-2 District bounded by:
  - a line 150 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 127th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, and a line midway between 10th Street and 106th
  - a line 150 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 132nd Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, and 130th
  - a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st c. Avenue, 132nd Street, a line 150 feet

- southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 130th Street; and
- d. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 127th Street, a line 150 southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and a line midway between 113th Street and 112th Street:
- 6. eliminating from within an existing R5 District a C2-2 District bounded by:
  - a. Rockaway Boulevard, Atlantic Avenue, a line 150 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 75th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of 93rd Avenue, Eldert Lane, a line 150 feet northerly of 91st Avenue, and a line 100 feet easterly of Eldert Lane;
  - b. a line 150 feet northwesterly of 101st
    Avenue, 86th Street, Rockaway
    Boulevard, 87th Street, a line 150 feet
    northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard,
    88th Street, a line 150 feet northwesterly
    of 101st Avenue, 89th Street, Rockaway
    Boulevard, 88th Street, a line midway
    between 101st Avenue and 102nd Avenue,
    81st Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly
    of 101st Avenue, 77th Street, Liberty
    Avenue, and Drew Street;
  - c. a line 150 feet northwesterly of 101st
    Avenue, 102nd Street, a line 100 feet
    northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 127th
    Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of
    101st Avenue, 105th Street, 101st
    Avenue, 103rd Street, a line 100 feet
    southeasterly of 101st Avenue, a line
    midway between 102nd Street and 101st
    Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of
    101st Avenue, 101st Street, 101st
    Avenue, and 100th Street; and
  - d. a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 132nd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 130th Street;
- 7. changing from an R5 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by:
  - a. 95th Avenue, 78th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 77th Street and 78th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, a line midway between 76th Street and 77th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, and 76th Street;
  - b. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 95th
    Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of
    Rockaway Boulevard, Digby Place, 97th
    Avenue, 84th Street, a line 100 feet
    southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line 100
    feet southwesterly of Rockaway
    Boulevard, 85th Street, a line 300 feet
    northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 86th
    Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of
    101st Avenue, a line midway between
    81st Street and 82nd Street, a line 100
    feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, 81st
    Street, 97th Avenue, and a line midway
    between 80th Street and 81st Street;
  - c. Atlantic Avenue, 86th Street, 95th
    Avenue, 85th Street, a line 100 feet
    northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard,
    95th Avenue, 83rd Street, a line 175 feet
    southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, and
    82nd Street;
  - d. a line 200 feet southeasterly of 95th Avenue, 89th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 95th Avenue, a line midway between 89th Street and 90th Street, a line 50 feet southeasterly of 95th Avenue, 90th Street, 95th Avenue, a line midway between 91st Street and 92nd Street, a line 75 feet northwesterly of 97th Avenue, 91st Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, 92nd 95th Avenue, a line midway between 93rd Street and 94th Street, 95th Avenue, 96th Street, Atlantic Avenue, a line 115 feet northeasterly of 96th Street, a line 190 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, 97th Street, a line 260 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of 97th Street, 95th Avenue, 98th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 88th Street, a line 450 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 87th Street and 88th Street, a line 350 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, 87th Street, a line 50 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 86th Street and 87th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, and 86th Street;
  - e. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 88th Street, 102nd Avenue, 89th Street, 102nd Road, 90th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 103rd Avenue, and a line 200 feet southwesterly of 86th Street;
  - f. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, a line midway between 97th Street and 98th Street, 103rd Avenue, 92nd Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, and 90th Street;

- g. a line 100 feet northwesterly 103rd
  Avenue, 114th Street, a line 90 feet
  northwesterly of 103rd Avenue, 127th
  Street, 103rd Avenue, and a line midway
  between 101st Street and 102nd Street; and
- h. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st
  Avenue, a line midway between 102nd
  Street and 101st Street, a line 150 feet
  southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 101st
  Street:
- 8. changing from a C8-1 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by 82nd Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, and a line 175 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue;
- 9. changing from an R5 District to an R4B District property bounded by:
  - Rockaway Boulevard, 75th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 75th Street and 76th Street, a line perpendicular to the westerly street line of 76th Street distant 115 feet southerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southwesterly street line of Rockaway Boulevard and the westerly street line of 76th Street, 76th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 78th Street, Atlantic Avenue, 78th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, a line 50 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, 81st Street, 95th Avenue, 76th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 97th Avenue, 75th Street, a line 120 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, Drew Street, 95th Avenue, and Eldert Lane; and
  - b. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th
    Avenue, a line midway between 78th
    Street and 80th Street, a line 300 feet
    northwesterly of 101st Avenue, a line
    midway between 80th Street and 81st
    Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of
    97th Avenue, a line midway between 81st
    Street and 82nd Street, a line 100 feet
    northwesterly of 101st Avenue, and a line
    midway between 77th Street and 78th
    Street;
- 10. changing from an R5 District to an R5B District property bounded by:
  - a line 100 feet northwesterly of 97th
     Avenue, 76th Street, a line 100 feet
     southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line
     midway between 76th Street and 77th
     Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of
     101st Avenue, and 75th Street;
  - b. 95th Avenue, 82nd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 95th Avenue, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, 97th Avenue, 81st Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, a line 300 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, a line midway between 78th Street and 80th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, and 78th Street; and
  - c. a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 81st Street, Liberty Avenue, and 77th Street:
- changing from an R3-1 District to an R6B District property bounded by 79th Street, a line perpendicular to the westerly street line of 80th Street distant 70 feet northerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northwesterly street line of Atlantic Avenue and the westerly street line of 80th Street, 80th Street, a line perpendicular to the easterly street line of 80th Street line of 80th Street line of the northerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northwesterly street line of Atlantic Avenue and the easterly street line of 80th Street, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, Atlantic Avenue, and Rockaway Boulevard;
- 12. changing from an R5 District to an R6B District property bounded by:
  - a. Rockaway Boulevard, Atlantic Avenue, 78th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 76th Street, a line perpendicular to the westerly street line of 76th Street distant 115 feet southerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the westerly street line of 76th Street and the southwesterly street line of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 75th Street and 76th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, and 75th Street;
  - b. a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 81st Street, a line 50 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, and a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street;
    - a line 175 feet southeasterly of Atlantic

Avenue, 83rd Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, and a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard;

d.

- 95th Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 85th Street, 97th Avenue, 86th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 86th Street and 87th Street, a line 50 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 87th Street, a line 350 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 87th Street and 88th Street, a line 450 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, 88th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 132nd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 101st Street, 101st Avenue, 100th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 90th Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 92nd Street, 103rd Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 90th Street, 102nd Road, 89th Street, 102nd Avenue, 88th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 77th Street, Liberty Avenue, Drew Street, a line 120 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 75th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 86th Street, a line 300 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 85th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, 84th Street, Rockaway Boulevard, and the southeasterly centerline prolongation of 83rd Street;
- e. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, the Van Wyck Expressway, Liberty Avenue, and 133rd Street; and
- f. Digby Place, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, and 97th Avenue;
- 13. changing from a C8-1 District to an R6B District property bounded by Atlantic Avenue, 82nd Street, a line 175 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, 83rd Street, Rockaway Boulevard, 84th Street, 97th Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 82nd Street, 95th Avenue, 81st Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, and 78th Street;
- 14. changing from an M1-2 District to an R6B District property bounded by 101st Avenue, 101st Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 100th Street;
- 15. establishing within an existing R5 District a C1-3
  District bounded by 95th Avenue, a line midway
  between 93rd Street and 94th Street, a line 100 feet
  southeasterly of 95th Avenue, and a line midway
  between 91st Street and 92nd Street;
- 16. establishing within an existing R3-1 District a C2-3
  District bounded by 91st Avenue, a line 100 feet
  northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 77th Street,
  and Rockaway Boulevard;
- 17. establishing within an existing R4A District a C2-3
  District bounded by a line 100 feet southeasterly of
  101st Avenue, Lefferts Boulevard, a line 150 feet
  southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and a line midway
  between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street;
- 18. establishing within an existing R5 District a C2-3
  District bounded by Atlantic Avenue, 88th Street, a
  line 100 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, and
  86th Street:
- 19. establishing within a proposed R6B District a C2-3 District bounded by:

Rockaway Boulevard, 79th Street, a line

perpendicular to the westerly street line of 80th Street distant 70 feet northerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northwesterly street line of Atlantic Avenue and the westerly street line of 80th Street, 80th Street, a line perpendicular to the easterly street line of 80th Street distant 80 feet northerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northwesterly street line of Atlantic Avenue and the easterly street line of 80th Street, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, Atlantic Avenue, 82nd Street, a line 175 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, 83rd Street, 95th Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 85th Street, 97th Avenue, 86th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line midway between 86th Street and 87th Street, a line 50 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 87th Street, a line 350 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line 75 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 87th Street and 88th Street, a line 450 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, a line 75 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 88th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 90th Street, 101st Avenue, 91st Street, a line

- 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 93rd Street, 101st Avenue, 94th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 99th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 90th Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 91st Street, Rockaway Boulevard, 103rd Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 90th Street, 102nd Road, 89th Street, Rockaway Boulevard, 88th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 77th Street, Liberty Avenue, Drew Street, a line 120 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 75th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 86th Street, a line 300 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 85th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 97th Avenue, 84th Street, 97th Avenue, Digby Place, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 82nd Street, 95th Avenue, 81st Street, a line 50 feet northwesterly of 95th Avenue, a line midway between 80th Street and 81st Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Atlantic Avenue, 78th Street, Atlantic Avenue, 78th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 76th Street, a line perpendicular to the westerly street line of 76th Street distant 115 feet southerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the westerly street line of 76th Street and the southwesterly street line of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 75th Street and 76th Street, a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard, and 75th Street;
- b. a line 100 feet northwesterly of 101st Avenue, 132nd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, 105th Street, 101st Avenue, 103rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 101st Avenue, and 100th Street; and
- c. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, Van Wyck Expressway, Liberty Avenue, and 133rd Street;

#### B. CD 10

- 1. eliminating from within an existing R3-2 District a C1-2 District bounded by:
  - a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 127th Street, Liberty Avenue, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 123rd Street; and
  - b. Liberty Avenue, Van Wyck Expressway, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, and 134th Street;
- 2. eliminating from within an existing R4 District a C1-2 District bounded by:
  - a. a line 150 feet northerly of Rockaway
    Boulevard, a line 150 feet northerly of
    Liberty Avenue, 98th Street, a line 150
    feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a
    line 150 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue,
    Cross Bay Boulevard, 107th Avenue, a
    line midway between 93rd Street and
    Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 150 feet
    southerly of Liberty Avenue, 93rd Street,
    Liberty Avenue, and Woodhaven
    Boulevard;
  - b. a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 118th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, and 111th Street;
  - c. a line 150 feet northwesterly of 111th
    Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of
    Lefferts Boulevard, a line 150 feet
    southeasterly of 111th Avenue, 118th
    Street, 111th Avenue, and Lefferts
    Boulevard;
  - d. 109th Avenue, 107th Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 108th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, Centreville Street, Rockaway Boulevard, and the southeasterly centerline prolongation of 106th Street;
  - e. 134th Avenue, the northerly centerline prolongation of 94th Street, Linden Boulevard, 95th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Linden Boulevard, and Cross Bay Boulevard: and
  - f. Pitkin Avenue, 86th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Pitkin Avenue, and 84th Street;
- 3. eliminating from within an existing R5 District a C1-2 District bounded by:
  - a. a line 265 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 98th Street, a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between 98th Street and 97th Street; and
  - b. a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of 94th Street distant 225 feet southeasterly (as measured along the

street line) from the point of intersection of the southeasterly street line of 103rd Avenue and the southwesterly street line 94th Street, 94th Street, and Rockaway Boulevard:

- 4. eliminating from within an existing R3-2 District a C2-2 District bounded by:
  - a. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 131st Street, 103rd Avenue, 133rd Street, Liberty Avenue, 134th Street, a line 150 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 127th Street, Liberty Avenue, and 127th Street; and
  - Linden Boulevard, 114th Street,
     Rockaway Boulevard, 118th Street, 115th
     Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts
     Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 150
     feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard,
     120th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of
     Rockaway Boulevard, and a line 275 feet
     westerly of 114th Street;
- 5. eliminating from within an existing R4 District a C2-2 District bounded by:
  - a. Liberty Avenue, 77th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, and 75th Street;
  - b. Liberty Avenue, 93rd Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, and 87th Street;
  - c. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty
    Avenue, 111th Street, a line 150 feet
    southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line
    midway between 102nd Street and 101st
    Street, Liberty Avenue, and 103rd Street;
  - d. a line 150 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 110th Street, Rockaway Boulevard, and 109th Street; and
  - e. a line 150 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 113th Street, Linden Boulevard, Rockaway Boulevard, and 111th Street;
- 6. eliminating from within an existing R5 District a C2-2 District bounded by:
  - a. 103rd Avenue, 93rd Street, Rockaway
    Boulevard, 94th Street, a line 150 feet
    northerly of Rockaway Boulevard,
    Woodhaven Boulevard, Rockaway
    Boulevard, 94th Street, Liberty Avenue,
    93rd Street, a line 150 feet northerly of
    Liberty Avenue, and 92nd Street; and
  - b. a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 111th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 103rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 102nd Street;
- 7. changing from an R3-2 District to an R3A District property bounded by:
  - a. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty
    Avenue, 133rd Street, a line 130 feet
    southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 134th
    Street, a line 120 feet southeasterly of
    Liberty Avenue, 135th Street, a line 100
    feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, the
    centerline of the northeasterly service
    road of Van Wyck Expressway, 105th
    Avenue and its northeasterly centerline
    prolongation, 133rd Street, 107th Avenue,
    and 123rd Street; and
  - b. a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway
    Boulevard, a line midway between 118th
    Street and Lefferts Boulevard, a line 240
    feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a
    line midway between Lefferts Boulevard
    and 120th Street, Hawtree Creek Road,
    135th Avenue, 115th Street, a line 100
    feet southerly of 135th Avenue, and 114th
    Street
- 8. changing from an R4 District to an R3A District property bounded by 133rd Avenue, a northeasterly boundary line of the Long Island Rail Road right-of-way (Rockaway Beach Division), Pitkin Avenue, and 97th Street;
- 9. changing from a C8-1 District to an R3A District property bounded by a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 114th Street, a line 500 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, and a line 100 feet westerly of 114th Street;
- 10. changing from an R3-2 District to an R3X District property bounded by a line 100 feet southerly of 135th Avenue, 115th Street, a line 200 feet southerly of 135th Avenue, a line midway between 115th Street and 116th Street, a line 180 feet northerly of 149th Avenue, 116th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of 149th Avenue, 117th Street, a line 150 feet southerly 135th Avenue, 118th Street, 135th Avenue, a line midway between 118th Street and Lefferts Boulevard, 149th Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street and its southerly prolongation, Southern Parkway, and 114th Street and its southerly centerline prolongation;
- 11. changing from an R4 District to an R3X District property bounded by Pitkin Avenue, a northeasterly boundary line of the Long Island Rail Road right-of-way (Rockaway Beach Division), North Conduit Avenue, Albert Road, a line 200 feet westerly of 95th Street, a line 90 feet southerly of

- Albert Road, Cross Bay Boulevard, 149th Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard and its southerly prolongation, a line 100 feet northerly of 149th Avenue, and 97th Street;
- 12. changing from an R3-2 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 127th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and 123rd Street;
- 13. changing from an R4 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by:
  - a. Liberty Avenue, a northwesterly boundary line of Bayside Cemetery and its northeasterly and southwesterly prolongations, 80th Street, Pitkin Avenue, a line midway between 80th Street and 79th Street, a line 260 feet northerly of Sutter Avenue, 79th Street, a line 160 feet northerly of Sutter Avenue, a line midway between 78th Street and 79th Street, Glenmore Avenue, and 79th Street:
  - b. a line 100 feet southwesterly of Pitkin Avenue, 81st Street, Sutter Avenue, Pitkin Avenue, 86th Street, 133rd Avenue, a line midway between 85th Street and 86th Street, a line 160 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, 85th Street, Dumont Avenue, 83rd Street, a northeasterly and easterly boundary line of Joseph P. Addabbo Memorial Park and its southeasterly and northerly prolongations, 133rd Avenue, 81st Street, a northerly and northeasterly boundary line of Joseph P. Addabbo Memorial Park and its easterly and northwesterly prolongations, and 80th Street;
  - Sutter Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 90 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, Silver Road, Cross Bay Boulevard, Gold Road, a line 525 feet southeasterly from Sitka Street, Desarc Road, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Redding Street, a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road distant 160 feet northwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road and the northwesterly street line of Redding Street, Pitkin Avenue, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Redding Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Albert Road and its northwesterly prolongation, a line 200 feet southeasterly of Redding Street, Albert Road, 149th Avenue, North Conduit Avenue, 88th Street, Pitkin Avenue, a line 360 feet northwesterly
  - d. of Sitka Street, Desarc Road, 133rd
    Avenue, a line perpendicular to the
    northeasterly street line of Gold Road
    distant 180 feet southeasterly (as
    measured along the street line) from the
    point of intersection of the northeasterly
    street line of Gold Road and the easterly
    street line of 89th Street, Silver Road, a
    line 130 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue,
    Gold Road, a line 175 feet northerly of
    133rd Avenue, and 88th Street;
  - e. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty
    Avenue, a line midway between 109th
    Street and 110th Street, 107th Avenue,
    108th Street, a line 375 feet
    northwesterly of 107th Avenue, a line
    midway between 106th Street and 107th
    Street, a line 175 feet northwesterly of
    107th Avenue, 105th Street, 107th
    Avenue, a line 200 feet southeasterly of
    107th Avenue, a line midway between
    105th Street and 106th Street, a line 100
    feet northeasterly of Rockaway
    Boulevard, and 104th Street;
  - f. a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty
    Avenue, 118th Street, a line 200 feet
    southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line
    midway between Lefferts Boulevard and
    120th Street, a line 100 feet
    northwesterly of 107th Avenue, a line
    midway between 122nd Street and 123rd
    Street, a line 200 feet southeasterly of
    Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, a line 100
    feet northwesterly of 109th Avenue,
    122nd Street, 107th Avenue, 121st Street,
    a line 125 feet northwesterly of 109th
    Avenue, 120th Street, 107th Avenue, and
    117th Street;
  - a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway g. Boulevard, Centreville Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 108th Street, Linden Boulevard, 107th Street, a line 180 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue, 106th Street, a line 170 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue, 105th Street, a line perpendicular to the southeasterly street line of Centreville Street distant 250 feet southwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southerly street line of Sutter Avenue and the southeasterly street line of Centreville Street, Centreville Street, and 103rd Street;
  - h. 109th Avenue, a line midway between 109th Street and 110th Street, a 120 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 109th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, and 107th Street;

- a line 350 feet northwesterly of 111th Avenue, 113th Street, a line 80 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, and a line midway between 111th Street and 112th Street;
- j. Albert Road, North Conduit Avenue, a northeasterly boundary line of the Long Island Rail Road right-of-way (Rockaway Beach Division), Nassau Expressway, and a line 120 feet easterly of 95th Street and its southerly prolongation; and
- k. a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty
  Avenue, 118th Street, a line 100 feet
  northerly of Liberty Avenue, and 111th
  Street:
- 14. changing from an R5 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by:
  - a. 103rd Avenue, a line 100 feet
     southeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard,
     92nd Street, a line 100 feet northerly of
     Liberty Avenue, and 88th Street;
  - b. 103rd Avenue, 98th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, 97th Street, a line 200 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between 96th Street and 97th Street, a line 150 northerly of Liberty Avenue, 96th Street, a line 150 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 93rd Street and 94th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of 103rd Avenue, and 93rd Street; and
  - 103rd Avenue, 131st Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 127th Street, a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street, a line 280 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, 120th Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 220 feet southerly of 103rd Avenue, Lefferts Boulevard, a line 300 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 118th Street, a line 150 feet northerly and northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 111th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 102nd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 101st Street;
- 15. changing from a C4-2 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by:
  - a. a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty
    Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts
    Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 300
    feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue,
    Lefferts Boulevard, a line 400 feet
    southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line
    midway between Lefferts Boulevard and
    118th Street, a line 480 feet southeasterly
    of 103rd Avenue, and 118th Street;
  - b. a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 120th street, a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street;
  - c. a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street:
  - d. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, a line 200 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between 122nd Street and 123rd Street; and
  - e. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 200 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, and 118th Street:
- 16. changing from a C8-1 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by:
  - a. Desarc Road, a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road distant 160 feet northwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road and the westerly street line of Redding Street, and a line 200 feet northwesterly of Redding
  - a line 100 feet northerly of Albert Road, a line 225 feet easterly of Redding Street, Albert Road, and a line 200 feet easterly of Redding Street; and
  - c. 103rd Avenue, 88th Street, and a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue;
- 17. changing from an M1-1 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by a line 350 feet southerly of

- 103rd Avenue, 101st Street, a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, and 100th Street;
- 18. changing from an M1-2 District to an R4-1 District property bounded by 103rd Avenue, 99th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, and 98th Street;
- 19. changing from an R3-2 District to an R4A District property bounded by Linden Boulevard, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 115th Avenue, a line 80 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, and 114th Street;
- 20. changing from an R4 District to an R4A District property bounded by:
  - a. Liberty Avenue, 78th Street, Glenmore
    Avenue, a line midway between 78th
    Street and 79th Street, a line 160 feet
    northerly of Sutter Avenue, 79th Street, a
    line 260 feet northerly of Sutter Avenue, a
    line midway between 79th Street and
    80th Street, Pitkin Avenue, 80th Street,
    North Conduit Avenue, and 75th Street;
  - a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of 93rd Street, 107th Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 150 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, 95th Street, a line perpendicular to the easterly street line of 95th Street distant 150 feet southerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the easterly street line of 95th Street and the southerly street line of Rockaway Boulevard, 96th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 98th Street and the southeasterly centerline prolongation, 133rd Avenue, 97th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of 149th Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 200 feet southerly of 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet westerly of 94th Place, 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, 133rd Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, Sutter Avenue, 88th Street, 133rd Avenue, a line midway between 87th Street and 88th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue, 87th Street, a line 260 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue, a line midway between 86th Street and 87th Street, Pitkin Avenue, 133rd Avenue, 86th Street, Pitkin Avenue, and 84th Street;
  - c. a line 375 feet northwesterly of 107th
    Avenue, 108th Street, 107th Avenue,
    109th Street, 109th Avenue, a line 100
    feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a
    line midway between 105th Street and
    106th Street, a line 200 feet southeasterly
    of 107th Avenue, 105th Street, 107th
    Avenue, 105th Street, a line 175 feet
    northwesterly of 107th Avenue, and a line
    midway between 106th Street and 107th
    Street.
  - d. a line 100 feet southeasterly and southerly of Liberty Avenue, 117th Street, 107th Avenue, 120th Street, 109th Avenue, a line midway between 118th Street and Lefferts Boulevard, Linden Boulevard, 113th Street, a line 350 feet northwesterly of 111th Avenue, a line midway between 111th Street and 112th Street, a line 80 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 110th Street, a line 120 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between 109th Street and 110th Street, 109th Avenue, 112th Street, 107th Avenue, and a line midway between 109th Street and 110th
  - e. a line 200 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 122nd Street and 123rd Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 107th Avenue, and a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street: and
  - f. a line 100 feet northwesterly of 109th
    Avenue, 123rd Street, Linden Boulevard,
    a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard
    and 120th Street, 111th Avenue, 120th
    Street, a line 425 feet southeasterly of
    109th Avenue, a line midway between
    120th Street and 121st Street, a line 100
    feet southeasterly of 109th Avenue, 121st
    Street, 109th Avenue, and 121st Street;
- 21. changing from a C4-2 District to an R4A District property bounded by a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 122nd Street and 123rd Street, a line 200 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street;
- 22. changing from a C8-1 District to an R4A District property bounded by a line 75 feet westerly of 94th Street, a line 130 feet northerly of Pitkin Avenue, and a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard;
- 23. changing from an R4 District to an R4B District property bounded by:
  - a. 133rd Avenue, 87th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, a line midway between 86th Street and 87th Street, Dumont Avenue, the southerly prolongation of the westerly street line of

- 86th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Dumont Avenue, the northeasterly boundary line of a park and its northwesterly prolongation, Dumont Avenue, 85th Street, a line 160 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, and a line midway between 85th Street and 86th
- a line 100 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue,
  a line midway between 87th Street and
  88th Street, 133rd Avenue, Pitkin
  Avenue, a line midway between 86th
  Street and 87th Street, a line 260 feet
  southerly of Sutter Avenue, and 87th Street;
- c. 107th Avenue, 112th Street, 109th Avenue, and 109th Street; and
- d. 107th Avenue, 122nd Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 109th Avenue, and 121st Street;
- 24. changing from an R4 District to an R5D District property bounded by:
  - 1. 133rd Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet southwesterly of 94th Place, a line 200 feet southeasterly of 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 75 feet westerly of 94th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Linden Boulevard, Cross Bay Boulevard, Silver Road, a line 90 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, and Cross Bay Boulevard; and
  - b. a line 200 feet northwesterly of Redding Street, Pitkin Avenue, and a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road distant 160 feet northwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road and the northwesterly street line of Redding Street;
- 25. changing from a C8-1 District to an R5D District property bounded by Gold Road, Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 75 feet westerly of 94th Street, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard and its southerly prolongation, 149th Avenue, Albert Road, a line 225 feet southeasterly of Redding Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Albert Road and its northwesterly prolongation, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Redding Street, Pitkin Avenue, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Redding Street, a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road distant 160 feet northwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road and the northwesterly street line of Redding Street, Desarc Road, and a line 525 feet southeasterly of Sitka Street;
- 26. changing from an R5 District to an R6A District property bounded by:
  - a. a line 220 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 300 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and Lefferts Boulevard; and
  - b. a line 280 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street, a line 200 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and 120th Street;
- 27. changing from a C4-2 District to an R6A District property bounded by 118th Street, a line 480 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 400 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, Lefferts Boulevard, a line 300 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, and a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue;
- 28. changing from an R3-2 District to an R6B District property bounded by a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 131st Street, 103rd Avenue, Liberty Avenue, the centerline of the northeasterly service road of the Van Wyck Expressway, a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, 135th Street, a line 120 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, 134th Street, a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of 134th Street distant 130 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southerly street line of Liberty Avenue and the southwesterly street line of 134th Street, 133rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 123rd Street;
- 29. changing from an R4 District to an R6B District property bounded by:
  - a. Liberty Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard,
    Woodhaven Boulevard, a line 150 feet
    northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 96th
    Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty
    Avenue, 98th Street, a line 100 feet
    southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard,
    96th Street, a line perpendicular to the
    easterly street line 95th Street distant
    150 feet southerly (as measured along the

- street line) from the point of intersection of the easterly street line of 95th Street and the southerly street line of Rockaway Boulevard, 95th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, 107th Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of 93rd Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, and 84th Street; and
- a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty b. Avenue, 118th Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 101st Street and 102nd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 103rd Street;
- 30. changing from an R5 District to an R6B District property bounded by:
  - 103rd Avenue, 93rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between 93rd Street and 94th Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, Woodhaven Boulevard, Cross Bay Boulevard, Liberty Avenue, 93rd Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 92nd Street, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard;
  - a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty b. Avenue, 103rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 102nd Street; and
  - a line 480 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, 98th Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between 97th Street and 98th
- 31. changing from a C8-1 District to an R6B District property bounded by a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 92nd Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 93rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 103rd Avenue;
- changing from an M1-1 District to an R6B District 32. property bounded by:
  - a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 101st Street, Liberty Avenue, and 100th Street; and
  - Rockaway Boulevard, 99th Street, a line b. 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line perpendicular to the northeasterly street line of 98th Street distant 150 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southerly street line of Rockaway Boulevard and the northeasterly street line of 98th Street, and 98th Street;
- 33. establishing within an existing R3-2 District a C1-3 District bounded by Linden Boulevard, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, 115th Avenue, and a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street;
- establishing within an existing R4 District a C1-3  $\,$ 34. District bounded by a line 100 feet northwesterly of 111th Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Lefferts Boulevard, 111th Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, Linden Boulevard, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street, 111th Avenue, and Lefferts Boulevard;
- establishing within a proposed R4-1 District a C1-3 35. District bounded by:
  - Pitkin Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of 85th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of 133rd Avenue, 85th Street, a line 195 feet northerly of 133rd Avenue, and a line 100 feet westerly of 85th Street; and
  - Sutter Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, a b. line 100 feet southerly of Sutter Avenue, and a line 100 feet westerly of Cross Bay Boulevard;
- 36. establishing within a proposed R4A District a C1-3 District bounded by:
  - Linden Boulevard, 95th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Linden Boulevard, and 94th Street; and
  - b. a line 340 feet southerly of 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet westerly of 97th Street, Linden Boulevard, a line 90 feet easterly of 96th Place, a line 100 feet southerly of Linden Boulevard, 96th Place, a line 280 feet northerly of Pitkin Avenue, a line 80 feet easterly of 96th Street, Linden Boulevard, and a line 175 feet westerly of 97th Street;
- establishing within a proposed R5D District a C1-3  $\,$ 37. District bounded by:
  - 133rd Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of a. Cross Bay Boulevard, 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet westerly of 94th Place, a line 200 feet southerly of 134th Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, Linden Boulevard, Cross Bay Boulevard, Silver Road, a line 75 feet westerly of Cross Bay Boulevard, a line 90 feet southerly of 133rd Avenue, and Cross Bay Boulevard; and
  - b. Pitkin Avenue, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard and its southerly

prolongation, 149th Avenue, Albert Road, a line 225 feet southeasterly of Redding Street, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Albert Road and its northwesterly prolongation, and a line 100 feet northwesterly of Redding Street;

- 38. establishing within an existing R3-2 District a C2-3District bounded by Linden Boulevard, 114th Street, Rockaway Boulevard, 117th Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of 15th Avenue, 118th Street, 115th Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 100 feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 120th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 240 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, and a line 275 feet northerly of 114th Street;
- 39. establishing within a proposed R3A District a C2-3  $\,$ District bounded by a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line 65 feet northeasterly of 123rd Street, a line perpendicular to the northeasterly street line of 123rd Street distant 125 feet southerly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southeasterly street line of Liberty Avenue and the northeasterly street line of 123rd Street, and 123rd Street;
- 40. establishing within an existing R4 District a C2-3 District bounded by:
  - 109th Avenue, 107th Street, a line 100 a. feet northerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 108th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, Centreville Street, Rockaway Boulevard, and the southeasterly centerline prolongation of 106th Street:
  - a line 120 feet northerly of Rockaway b. Boulevard, 110th Street, Rockaway Boulevard, and 109th Street; and
  - a line 80 feet northerly of Rockaway c. Boulevard, 113th Street, Linden Boulevard, Rockaway Boulevard, and 111th Street:
- 41. establishing within a proposed R4-1 District a C2-3 District bounded by:
  - a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty a. Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 500 feet northerly of 107th Avenue, and 118th
  - b. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 510 feet northwesterly of 107th Avenue, and Lefferts Boulevard; and
  - a line 400 feet southeasterly of 103rd c. Avenue, 121st Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, and a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street;
- 42. establishing within a proposed R4A District a C2-3 District bounded by:
  - a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty a. Avenue, 121st Street, a line 580 feet northwesterly of 107th Avenue, a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street, a line 560 feet northwesterly of 107th Avenue, and 120th Street;
  - b. a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 122nd Street and 123rd Street, a line 610 feet northwesterly of 107th Avenue, and a line midway between 121st Street and 122nd Street: and
  - Liberty Avenue, 77th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, and 75th Street:
  - establishing within a proposed R5D District a C2-3 District bounded by Linden Boulevard, a line 100 feet easterly of Cross Bay Boulevard, Pitkin Avenue, a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road distant 160 feet northwesterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southwesterly street line of Desarc Road and the northwesterly street line of Redding Street, Desarc Road, a line 525 feet southeasterly of Sitka Street, Gold Road, and Cross Bay Boulevard;

44.

establishing within a proposed R6A District a C2-3 District bounded by a line 480 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 118th Street, a line 400 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, Lefferts Boulevard, a line 220 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between Lefferts Boulevard and 120th Street, a line 150 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 120th Street, a line 450 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line midway between 120th Street and 121st Street, a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, a line 660 feet northwesterly of 107th Avenue, a line midway between 122nd Street and 123rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 121st Street and 122nd Street, a line 630 feet northwesterly of 107th Avenue, 121st Street, a

line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue and 118th Street; and

establishing within a proposed R6B District a C2-3 45. District bounded by:

a.

- 103rd Avenue, 93rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, Woodhaven Boulevard, a line 150 feet northeasterly of Rockaway Boulevard, 96th Street, a line 120 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 97th Street, a line 150 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 97th Street and 98th Street, a line 480 feet southeasterly of 103rd Avenue, 98th Street and its southeasterly centerline prolongation, Rockaway Boulevard, 99th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, a line perpendicular to the northeasterly street line of 98th Street distant 150 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection from the northeasterly street line of 98th Street and the southerly street line of Rockaway Boulevard, 98th Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Rockaway Boulevard, 96th Street, a line perpendicular to the northeasterly street line 95th Street distant 150 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the northeasterly street line of 95th Street and the southerly street line of Rockaway Boulevard, 95th Street, a line 150 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, Cross Bay Boulevard, 107th Avenue, a line 100 feet northeasterly of 93rd Street, a line 100 feet southerly of Liberty Avenue, 87th Street, Liberty Avenue, 103rd Avenue, a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty Avenue, 92nd Street, and a line 100 feet southwesterly of Rockaway Boulevard:
- a line 100 feet northerly of Liberty b. Avenue, 101st Street, Liberty Avenue, and 100th Street;
- a line 100 feet northwesterly and c. northerly of Liberty Avenue, 118th Street, a line 100 feet southerly and southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, a line midway between 101st Street and 102nd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 102nd Street;
- d. a line 100 feet northwesterly of Liberty Avenue, 131st Street, 103rd Avenue, Liberty Avenue, Van Wyck Expressway, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 135th Street, a line 120 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 134th Street, a line perpendicular to the southwesterly street line of 134th Street distant 130 feet southeasterly (as measured along the street line) from the point of intersection of the southeasterly street line of Liberty Avenue and the southwesterly street line of 134th Street, 133rd Street, a line 100 feet southeasterly of Liberty Avenue, 123rd Street, Liberty Avenue, and 123rd Street;

as shown on a diagram (for illustrative purposes only) dated September 9, 2013 and subject to the conditions of CEQR Declaration E-320.

YVETTE V. GRUEL, Calendar Officer **City Planning Commission** 22 Reade Street, Room 2E New York, New York 10007 Telephone (212) 720-3370

o23-n6

# COMMUNITY BOARDS

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

# BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 09 - Tuesday, October 22, 2013 at 7:00 P.M., Middle School 61, 400 Empire Blvd., Brooklyn, NY

BSA# 5-28-BZ

Premises: 664 New York Avenue, Brooklyn, NY

Application submitted by Eric Palatnik, P.C. to the Board of Standards and Appeals, the applicant seeks a change of nonconforming use, which was previously granted to another non-conforming use. The instant application seeks to change a Use Group 16 automotive service station to a Use Group 8, car rental establishment

021-25

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

# BOROUGH OF QUEENS

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 07 - Monday, October 28, 2013 at 7:00 P.M., Union Plaza Care Center, 33-23 Union Street, Flushing, NY

BSA# 163-13-BZ Premises: 133-10 39th Avenue Special permit supplication pursuant to Section 73-44, to reduce required parking, if approved it will permit in a C4-2 zoning district, the alteration of existing two-story and cellar Use Group 6 professional office building which was lawfully constructed with on parking spaces.

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the following matters have been scheduled for public hearing by Community Boards:

#### BOROUGH OF BROOKLYN

COMMUNITY BOARD NO. 13 - Wednesday, October 30, 2013 at 7:00 P.M., Coney Island Hospital, 2nd Floor Auditorium, 2601 Ocean Parkway, Brooklyn, NY

BSA# 268-12-BZ

Special permit application for the building at 2849 Cropsey Avenue, to permit increase in lot coverage from 55.28% (existing non-complying) to 58.53%.

**€** 024-30

### LANDMARKS PRESERVATION COMMISSION

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT PURSUANT to the provisions of 3020 of the New York City Charter and Chapter 3 of Title 24 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York (Sections 25-303 and 25-313) that on Tuesday, October 29, 2013 at 9:30 A.M., at the Landmarks Preservation Commission will conduct a public hearing in the Public Meeting Room of the Landmarks Preservation Commission, located at The Municipal Building, 1 Centre Street, 9th Floor North, City of New York with respect to the following proposed Landmarks, Landmark Sites and Historic District. Any person requiring reasonable accommodation in order to participate in the hearing should call or write the Landmarks Preservation Commission, [Municipal Building, 1 Centre Street, 9th Floor North, New York, NY 10007, (212) 669-7700] no later than five (5) business days before the hearing. There will also be a public meeting on that day.

#### Public Hearing Item No. 1 Time: 9:30 - 10:30 A.M.

LP-2558

PARK SLOPE HISTORIC DISTRICT EXTENSION II, Borough of Brooklyn

#### **Boundary Description**

Area I of the proposed Park Slope Historic District Extension II consists of the property bounded by a line beginning at the southeast corner of 6th Avenue and St. Mark's Avenue, extending easterly along the southern curbline of St. Mark's Avenue and southeasterly along the southwestern curbline of Flatbush Avenue, southwesterly and southerly along the northeastern and eastern property lines of 76 St. Mark's Avenue (aka 78 and 80 St. Mark's Avenue and 244 Flatbush Avenue), southerly along a portion of the eastern property line of 87 6th Avenue, easterly along a portion of the northern property line of 87 6th Avenue, southerly along the eastern property lines of 87 through 95 6th Avenue to the southern curbline of Prospect Place, easterly along said curbline, southerly along the eastern property line of 92 Prospect Place, westerly along the southern property lines of 92 through 82 Prospect Place and a portion of the southern property line of 105 6th Avenue, southerly along eastern property line of 95 Park Place (Block 939, Lot 71) to the southern curbline of Park Place, westerly along said curbline, southerly along the eastern property line of 117 6th Avenue (aka 80 Park Place), easterly along a portion of the northern property line of 119 6th Avenue, southerly along the eastern property line of 119 6th Avenue, easterly along a portion of the northern property line of 121 6th Avenue, southerly along the western property line of 92 Park Place, easterly along the southern property lines of 92 through 120 Park Place, southerly along the eastern property line of 109 Sterling Place to the northern curbline of Sterling Place, westerly along said curbline, southerly across Sterling Place and along the eastern property line of 94-96 Sterling Place, westerly along the southern property lines of 94-96 through 80 Sterling Place, northerly along the western property line of 80 Sterling Place to the southern curbline of Sterling Place, westerly along said curbline, crossing 6th Avenue, and continuing along said curbline, southerly along the western property line of 128 6th Avenue (aka 66 and 70 Sterling Place), westerly along the northern property line of 130 6th Avenue, southerly along the western property lines of 130 through 136 6th Avenue, westerly along the southern property lines of 64 through 12 Sterling Place, northerly along the western property line of 12 Sterling Place to the southern curbline of Sterling Place, easterly along said curbline, northerly across Sterling Place and along the western property line of 25 Sterling Place, easterly along the northern property lines of 25 through 31 Sterling Place, northerly along the western property line of 34 Park Place, to the southern curbline of Park Place, easterly along said curbline, northerly across park Place and along the western property lines of 71 Park Place (aka 114 6th Avenue and 71-83 Park Place) through 108 6th Avenue, westerly along the southern property lines of 106 6th Avenue and 64 through 10 Prospect Place, northerly along the western property line of 10 Prospect Place and across Prospect Place, continuing along the western property lines of 9 Prospect Place and 10 St. Mark's Avenue, across St. Mark's Avenue to its northern curbline, westerly along said curbline, northerly along the western property line of 7 St. Mark's Avenue, easterly along the northern property lines of 7 through 49 St. Mark's Avenue, southerly along the eastern property line of 49 St. Mark's Avenue, easterly along the northern property lines of 53 and 55 St. Mark's Avenue, southerly along the eastern property line of 55 St. Mark's Avenue, easterly along the northern property line of 57 St. Mark's Avenue, southerly along the eastern property line of 57 St. Mark's Avenue, easterly along the northern property line of 59 St. Mark's Avenue, southerly along the eastern property line of 59 St. Mark's Avenue to the southern curbline of St. Mark's Avenue, easterly along said curbline, across 6th Avenue to the eastern curbline of 6th Avenue, and northerly along said curbline to the point of the beginning, Borough of Brooklyn.

Area II of the proposed Park Slope Historic District Extension II consists of the property bounded by a line beginning at the southwest corner of Sterling Place and Flatbush Avenue, extending southerly along the eastern property line of 184 Sterling Place, westerly along the southern property line of 184 Sterling Place, northerly along the western property line of 184 Sterling Place, westerly along the southern property lines of 184 through 148 Sterling Place, northerly along the western property line of 148 Sterling Place, across Sterling Place to its northern curbline, westerly along said curbline, northerly along the western property line of 147 Sterling Place, easterly along the northern property lines of 147, 149 and 151 Sterling Place, southerly along the eastern property line of 151 Sterling Place and across Sterling Place to its southern curbline, easterly along said curbline to the point of the beginning, Borough of Brooklyn.

Area III of the proposed Park Slope Historic District Extension II consists of the property bounded by a line beginning at the southwest corner of Plaza Street West and St. John's Place, extending southerly along the western curbline of Plaza Street West, westerly along the southern property line of 1-3 Plaza Street West (aka 1-5 8th avenue and 254-266 St. John's Place), across 8th Avenue to the western curbline of 8th Avenue, northerly along said curbline to the southwest corner of 8th Avenue and St. John's Place, easterly across 8th Avenue and along the southern curbline of St. John's Place to the point of the beginning, Borough of Brooklyn.

**Area IV** of the proposed Park Slope Historic District Extension II consists of the property bounded by a line beginning at the northwest corner of 6th Avenue and Union Street, extending westerly along the northern curbline of Union Street, northerly along the western property lines of 204 6th Avenue (aka 787-793 Union Street) through 194 6th Avenue, westerly along the southern property lines of 70 through 12 Berkeley Place, northerly along the western property line of 12 Berkeley Place to the southern curbline of Berkeley Place, easterly along said curbline, southerly along the eastern property line of 70 Berkeley Place, easterly along the northern property line of 194 Berkeley Place and across 6th Avenue to its eastern curbline, southerly along said curbline, easterly along the northern property line of 201 6th Avenue, southerly along a portion of the eastern property line of 201 6th Avenue, westerly along a portion of the southern property line of 201 6th Avenue, southerly along the eastern property lines of 201 through 207 6th Avenue to the northern curbline of Union Street, westerly along said curbline and across 6th Avenue to the point of the beginning, Borough of Brooklyn.

Area V of the proposed Park Slope Historic District Extension II consists of the property bounded by a line beginning at the southwest corner of Plaza Street West and Lincoln Place, extending southeasterly along the curving western curbline of Plaza Street West, across Berkeley Place, continuing along said curbline to the northwest corner of Plaza Street West and Union Street, westerly along the northern curbline of Union Street to a point in said curbline formed by its intersection with a line extending northerly from the eastern property line of 902 Union Street, southerly along said line to the southern curbline of Union Street, westerly along said curbline to a point formed by its intersection with a line extending southerly from the western property line of 941 Union Street, northerly across Union Street and along the western property line of 941 Union Street, westerly along the southern property line of 284 Berkeley Place, northerly along the western property line of 284 Berkeley Place and across Berkeley Place to its northern curbline, westerly along said curbline, northerly along the western property line of 21 Plaza Street West (aka 21-37 Plaza Street West, 269-279 Berkeley Place, and 266 Lincoln Place) to the southern curbline of Lincoln Place, and easterly along said curbline to the point of the beginning, Borough of Brooklyn.

[Community District No. 06]

Public Hearing Item No. 2 Time: 10:30 - 10:50 A.M.

BRONX GENERAL POST OFFICE LOBBY, FIRST FLOOR INTERIOR, Consisting of the lobby and the fixtures and components of this space, including but not limited to, the wall surfaces, murals, wainscoting, ceiling surfaces, floor surfaces, columns, plaque, metal gate and globe lighting fixtures, 560 Grand Concourse (aka 554-582 Grand Concourse), Bronx.

Landmark Site: Borough of the Bronx Tax Map Block 2443, Lot 400 [Community District 04]

Public Hearing Item No. 4

Time: 10:50 - 11:00 A.M.

M. H. RENKEN DAIRY COMPANY OFFICE BUILDING AND ENGINE ROOM BUILDING, 582-584 Myrtle Avenue and 580 Myrtle Avenue, Brooklyn

Landmark Site: Borough of Brooklyn Tax Map Block 1909/Lot 32 in its entirety and Lot 31 in part, consisting of that portion of Lot 31 lying north of a line beginning at a point on the eastern boundary line of Lot 31 that is 61.21 feet south of the northern boundary line of Lot 31, thence running westerly, parallel with the northern boundary line of Lot 31, to a point on the western boundary line of Lot 31 [Community District No. 02].

# Public Hearing Item No. 4

Time: 11:00 - 11:10 A.M. LP-2548

DOERING-BOHACK HOUSE, 1090 Greene Avenue (aka 1 Goodwin Place), Brooklyn.

Landmark Site: Borough of Brooklyn Tax Map Block 3294, [Community District 04]

Public Hearing Item No. 5 Time: 11:10 - 11:20 A.M. LP-2541

RIDGEWOOD LODGE NO. 710. FREE AND ACCEPTED MASONS, 1054 Bushwick Avenue (aka 1122 Gates Avenue), Brooklyn.

Landmark Site: Borough of Brooklyn Tax Map Block 3339, Lot 19 [Community District 04]

Public Hearing Item No. 6

Time: 11:20 - 11:30 A.M. LP-2475

FORMER FIRST GERMAN BAPTIST CHURCH (LATER <u>UKRANIAN AUTOCEPHALIC ORTHODOX CHURCH OF</u> ST. VOLODYMYR/LATER CONGREGATION TIFERETH ISRAEL TOWN AND VILLAGE SYNAGOGUE), 334 East 14th Street, Manhattan

Landmark Site: Borough of Manhattan Tax Map Block 455, Lot 24 [Community District No. 03]

o15-28

#### TRANSPORTATION

PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to law, that the following proposed revocable consents, have been scheduled for a public hearing by the New York City Department of Transportation. The hearing will be held at 55 Water Street, 9th Floor, Room 945 commencing at 2:00 P.M. On Wednesday, November 6, 2013. Interested parties can obtain copies of proposed agreements or request sign-language interpreters (with at least seven days prior notice) at 55 Water Street, 9th Floor SW, New York, NY 10041, or by calling (212) 839-6550.

**#1** In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing 50 Restaurant Group LLC to continue to maintain and use a sidewalk hatch under the east sidewalk of Clinton Street, between Stanton and Rivington Streets, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2023 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 - \$1,165 For the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 - \$1,198 For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 - \$1,231 For the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 - \$1,264 For the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 - \$1,297 For the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 - \$1,330 For the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 - \$1,363 For the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 - \$1,396 For the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 - \$1,429 For the period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 - \$1,462

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$2,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate.

#2 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing 186 Manhattan Associates, LLC to continue to maintain and use a stoop and a fenced-in area on the south sidewalk of East 93rd Street, west of Third Avenue, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2023 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 - \$598 For the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 - \$613 For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 - \$628 For the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 - \$643 For the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 - \$658 For the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 - \$673 For the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 - \$688 For the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 - \$703 For the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 - \$718 For the period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 - \$733

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$2,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate.

#3 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing 484 8th Operating Inc. to continue to maintain and use a ramp on the east sidewalk of Eighth Avenue, north of 34th Street, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2023 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following

For the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2023 - \$25/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$2,500 and the insurance shall be the amount of One Million Dollars (1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (2,000,000) aggregate.

**#4** In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing Ashley Realty Corp. to continue to maintain planted areas and planters on the west sidewalk of Madison Avenue, north of East 71st Street, and one planted area on the north sidewalk of East 71st Street, west of Madison Avenue, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2023 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

For the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2023 - \$278/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$5,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) aggregate.

#5 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing The Brooklyn Union Gas Company d/b/a/ National Grid USA to construct, maintain and use gas main (Brooklyn-Queens Interconnect - Phase ll) under and along Brooklyn Marine Park, parallel to Flatbush Avenue, in the Borough of Brooklyn. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2024 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the City according to the following schedule:

From the date of Approval to June 30, 2014 - \$33,746/annum.

For the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 - \$34,708 For the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 - \$35,670 For the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 - \$36,632 For the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 - \$37,594 For the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 - \$38,556 For the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 - \$39,581 For the period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 - \$40,480 For the period July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 - \$41,442 For the period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 - \$42,404 For the period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 - \$43,366

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$103,500 and the insurance shall be in the amount of Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence, and Thirty Five Million Dollars (\$35,000,000) aggregate.

**#6** In the matter of a proposed modification of revocable consent authorizing Museum of Arts and Design to construct, maintain and use four (4) additional benches on the west sidewalk of Broadway at 2 Columbus Circle, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2019 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the city according to the following

From the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2019 -

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$5,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per-location annual aggregate limit.

**#7** In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing Mary White to construct, maintain and use a fenced-in area and a snowmelt system on the north sidewalk of East 78th Street, between Park Avenue and Lexington Avenue, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2024 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the city according to the following schedule:

From the Approval Date to June 30, 2024 - \$25/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum of \$5,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per-location annual aggregate limit.

#8 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing Strong and Harrison, LLC to construct, maintain and use fenced-in planted areas on the south sidewalk of Kane Street, west of Strong Place, in the Borough of Brooklyn. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2024 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the city according to the following schedule:

From the Approval Date to June 30, 2024 - \$25/annum.

the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum \$5,000 and the insurance shall be in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per-location annual aggregate limit.

#9 In the matter of a proposed revocable consent authorizing Sugar Shack LLC to construct, maintain and use a snowmelt system on the south sidewalk of East 75th Street, between Fifth Avenue and Madison Avenue, in the Borough of Manhattan. The proposed revocable consent is for a term of ten years from the date of Approval by the Mayor to June 30, 2024 and provides among other terms and conditions for compensation payable to the city according to the following

From the Approval Date to June 30, 2024 - \$25/annum. the maintenance of a security deposit in the sum \$5,000 and e shall be in the amount o (\$1,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per-location annual aggregate limit.

016-n6

# PROPERTY DISPOSITION

#### CITYWIDE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

# ASSET MANAGEMENT

■ PUBLIC LEASE AUCTION

PROPOSED LEASES OF CERTAIN NEW YORK CITY REAL PROPERTY SEALED BID PUBLIC LEASE AUCTION

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT The Department of Citywide Administrative Services; Asset Management will conduct a Sealed Bid Public Lease Auction pertaining to Long-Term Leases, Short-Term Leases and Licenses on October 30, 2013 at Municipal Building, 1 Centre Street, 20th Floor South Conference Room A, New York, NY 10007. Sealed bids will be accepted from 10:00 A.M. to 11:00 A.M. and opened at 11:00 A.M.

The offerings, including Terms and Conditions and Special Terms and Conditions, are set forth in a brochure. For further information, including a brochure and a bid packet, please visit the DCAS website at nyc.gov/dcas after October , 2013 or call 212-386-0335.

In accordance with Section 384 of the New York City Charter, the properties listed below will be offered at Sealed Bid Public Lease Auction. A Public Hearing was held on September 25, 2013 at 22 Reade Street, in the Borough of Manhattan in the matter of the two properties listed below:

#### Manhattan, Block 1633, Lot 13

Property Address: 127 East 105th Street Property Type: 3 story building Minimum <u>Annual</u> Bid: \$85,824

October 7, 2013 1:00 P.M. to Inspection Dates:

October 15, 2013 1:00 P.M. to

2:00 p.m.

Brooklyn, Block 6036, Part of Lot 1

Property Address: 8501 Fifth Avenue Property Type: Ground floor retail store and

> basement space \$90,240

Minimum <u>Annual</u> Bid: October 8, 2013 11:00 A.M. to Inspection Dates:

12:00 P.M.

October 15, 2013 12:00 P.M. to 1:00 P.M.

In accordance with New York Administrative Code Section 4-203, the properties listed below also will be offered at the Sealed Bid Public Lease Auction:

#### Bronx, Block 3542, Lot 20

Property Address: East side of Zerega Avenue,

approximately 250 feet south of Randall Avenue

Property Type: Unimproved Land

Minimum Monthly Bid: \$11,200

October 9, 2013 11:00 A.M. to Inspection Dates: 12:00 P.M.

October 16, 2013 12:00 P.M. to

1:00 P.M.

#### Queens, Block 13420, Lots: 8 and 999

Property Location: West side of 183rd Street, 200

feet south of the southwest corner of 150th Drive and 183rd

Street

Property Type; Unimproved Land Minimum Monthly Bid: \$4,820

October 10, 2013 11:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M.

October 16, 2013 12:00 P.M. to 1:00 P.M.

s27-o30

# OFFICE OF CITYWIDE PURCHASING

NOTICE

Inspection Dates:

The Department of Citywide Administrative Services, Office of Citywide Purchasing is currently selling surplus assets on the internet. Visit

http://www.publicsurplus.com/sms/nycdcas.ny/browse/home. To begin bidding, simply click on 'Register' on the home page. There are no fees to register. Offerings may include but are not limited to: office supplies/equipment, furniture, building supplies, machine tools, HVAC/plumbing/electrical equipment, lab equipment, marine equipment, and more. Public access to computer workstations and assistance with placing bids is available at the following locations:

- DCAS Central Storehouse, 66-26 Metropolitan Avenue, Middle Village, NY 11379
- DCAS, Office of Citywide Purchasing, 1 Centre Street, 18th Floor, New York, NY 10007.

jy24-d1

## **HOUSING PRESERVATION & DEVELOPMENT**

**■ SALE** 

Pursuant to Section 695(2)(b) of the General Municipal Law and Section 1802(6)(j) of the Charter, notice is hereby given that the Department of Housing Preservation and Development ("HPD") of the City of New York ("City") has proposed the sale of the following City-owned property (collectively, "Disposition Area") in the Borough of Manhattan:

Address Block/Lots

2139 Adam Clayton Powell Jr. Blvd. 1911/61 2135 Adam Clayton Powell Jr. Blvd. 1911/62

Under HPD's Low Income Program, sponsors purchase Cityowned land or vacant buildings and construct or rehabilitate multifamily buildings in order to create affordable rental housing. Construction and permanent financing is provided through loans from private institutional lenders and from public sources including HPD, the New York City Housing Development Corporation, the State of New York, and the federal government. Additional funding may also be provided from the syndication of low-income housing tax credits. The newly constructed or rehabilitated buildings provide rental housing to low-income families. Subject to project underwriting, up to 20% of the units may be rented to formerly homeless families.

Under the proposed project, the City will sell the Disposition Area to Harlem Dowling Development Fund Company, Inc. ("Sponsor") for the nominal price of one dollar per tax lot.

The Sponsor will also deliver an enforcement note and mortgage for the remainder of the appraised value ("Land Debt"). The Sponsor will then construct one building containing a total of 60 rental dwelling units and approximately 15,925 square feet of community facility space on the Disposition Area.

The Land Debt will be repayable out of resale or refinancing profits for a period of thirty (30) years following completion of construction. The remaining balance, if any, may be forgiven in the 30th year.

The appraisal and the proposed Land Disposition Agreement and Project Summary are available for public examination at the office of HPD, 100 Gold Street, Room 5-A1, New York, New York on business days during business hours.

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a public hearing will be held on November 25, 2013 at Second Floor Conference Room,  $22\,$ Reade Street, Manhattan at 10:00 A.M., or as soon thereafter as the matter may be reached on the calendar, at which time and place those wishing to be heard will be given an opportunity to be heard concerning the proposed sale of the Disposition Area pursuant to Section 695(2)(b) of the General Municipal Law and Section 1802(6)(j) of the Charter

Individuals requesting sign language interpreters should contact the Mayor's Office Of Contract Services, Public Hearings Unit, 253 Broadway, Room 915, New York, New York 10007, (212) 788-7490, no later than five (5) business days prior to the public hearing. TDD users should call Verizon relay services.

**● 024** 

Pursuant to Article 15 of the General Municipal Law ("GML") and Section 1802(6)(j) of the Charter, notice is hereby given that the Department of Housing Preservation and Development ("HPD") of the City of New York ("City") has proposed the sale of certain real property in the Brooklyn Center Urban Renewal Area ("Area") to BAM GO Developers LLC, the sponsor designated by HPD ("Sponsor"), for redevelopment in accordance with the Fifth Amended Brooklyn Center Urban Renewal Plan ("Plan") for the redevelopment of the Area

The property to be sold is located in the Borough of Brooklyn, City and State of New York, and known as:

> Address Block/Lot(s) 2107/15 590 Fulton Street 600 Fulton Street 2107/24

on the Tax Map of the City ("Disposition Area").

The City proposes to sell the Disposition Area to the Sponsor at the nominal price of one dollar per tax lot pursuant to Section 507(2)(d) of the GML. The Sponsor will also deliver an enforcement note and mortgage for the remainder of the appraised value ("Land Debt"). The Sponsor will thereafter be required to construct 1 new multiple dwelling on the Disposition Area to provide 585 units of low income and market rate rental housing, plus one unit for a superintendent, approximately 15,500 square feet of commercial space and approximately 8,000 square feet of cultural office space.

The Land Debt will be repayable out of resale or refinancing profits for a period of thirty (30) years following completion of construction. The remaining balance, if any, may be forgiven in the 30th year.

The proposed Land Disposition Agreement and the Plan are available for public examination at the office of HPD, 100 Gold Street, Room 5-A1, New York, New York during its regular hours on weekdays from 9:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M.

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a public hearing will be held on November 25, 2013 at Second Floor Conference Room, 22 Reade Street, Manhattan at 10:00 A.M., or as soon thereafter as the matter may be reached on the calendar, at which time and place those wishing to be heard will be given an opportunity to be heard concerning the proposed sale of the Disposition Area pursuant to Section 507(2)(d) of the GML and Section 1802(6)(j) of the Charter.

Individuals requesting sign language interpreters should contact the Mayor's Office Of Contract Services, Public Hearings Unit, 253 Broadway, Room 915, New York, New York 10007, (212) 788-7490, no later than five (5) business days prior to the public hearing. TDD users should call

# **POLICE**

OWNERS ARE WANTED BY THE PROPERTY CLERK DIVISION OF THE NEW YORK CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT.

The following listed property is in the custody, of the Property Clerk Division without claimants. Recovered, lost, abandoned property, property obtained from prisoners, emotionally disturbed, intoxicated and deceased persons; and property obtained from persons incapable of caring for themselves.

Motor vehicles, boats, bicycles, business machines, cameras, calculating machines, electrical and optical property, furniture, furs, handbags, hardware, jewelry, photographic equipment, radios, robes, sound systems, surgical and musical instruments, tools, wearing apparel, communications equipment, computers, and other miscellaneous articles.

# **INQUIRIES**

Inquiries relating to such property should be made in the Borough concerned, at the following office of the Property Clerk.

# FOR MOTOR VEHICLES

(All Boroughs):

Springfield Gardens Auto Pound, 174-20 North Boundary Road, Queens, NY 11430, (718) 553-9555

Erie Basin Auto Pound, 700 Columbia Street, Brooklyn, NY 11231, (718) 246-2030

## FOR ALL OTHER PROPERTY

Manhattan - 1 Police Plaza, New York, NY 10038, (646) 610-5906.

Brooklyn - 84th Precinct, 301 Gold Street, Brooklyn, NY 11201, (718) 875-6675.

Bronx Property Clerk - 215 East 161 Street,

Bronx, NY 10451, (718) 590-2806.

Queens Property Clerk - 47-07 Pearson Place,

Long Island City, NY 11101, (718) 433-2678. Staten Island Property Clerk - 1 Edgewater Plaza, Staten Island, NY 10301, (718) 876-8484.

j1-d31

# **PROCUREMENT**

"Compete To Win" More Contracts! Thanks to a new City initiative - "Compete to Win" - the NYC Department of Small Business Services offers a new set of FREE services to help create more opportunities for minority and women-owned businesses to compete, connect and grow their business with the City. With NYC Construction Loan, Technical Assistance, NYC Construction Mentorship, Bond Readiness, and NYC Teaming services, the City will be able to help even more small businesses than before

Win More Contracts at nyc.gov/competetowin

"The City of New York is committed to achieving excellence in the design and construction of its capital program, and building on the tradition of innovation in architecture and engineering that has contributed to the City's prestige as a global destination. The contracting opportunities for construction/construction services and construction-related services that appear in the individual agency listings below reflect that commitment to excellence."

# **HHS ACCELERATOR**

To respond to human services Requests for Proposals (RFPs) released Fall 2013 and later, vendors must first complete and submit an electronic prequalification application using the City's Health and Human Services (HHS) Accelerator System. The HHS Accelerator System is a web-based system maintained by the City of New York for use by its human services Agencies to manage procurement. To establish this, the City of New York is using the innovative procurement method, as permitted and in accordance with Section 3-12 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules of the City of New York ("PPB Rules"). The new process will remove redundancy by capturing information about boards, filings, policies, and general service experience centrally. As a result, specific proposals for funding will be more focused on program design, scope, and budget.

Important information about the new method

Prequalification applications are required every three

 Documents related to annual corporate filings must be submitted on an annual basis to remain eligible to compete Prequalification applications will be reviewed to validate compliance with corporate filings, organizational capacity, and relevant service experience

• Approved organizations will be eligible to compete and would submit electronic proposals through the system.

RFPs to be managed by HHS Accelerator are listed on the NYC Procurement Roadmap located at <a href="http://www.nyc.gov/html/hhsaccelerator/html/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadmap/roadma map.shtml. All current and prospective vendors should frequently review information listed on roadmap to take full advantage of upcoming opportunities for funding.

# **Participating NYC Agencies**

HHS Accelerator, led by the Deputy Mayor for Health and Human Services, is governed by an Executive Steering Committee of Agency Heads who represent the following NYC Client and Community- based Services Agencies:

Administration for Children's Services (ACS) Department for the Aging (DFTA)
Department of Corrections (DOC)
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (DOHMH)
Department of Homeless Services (DHS) Department of Probation (DOP) Department of Small Business Services (SBS)
Department of Youth and Community Development (DYCD) Housing and Preservation Department (HPD) Human Resources Administration (HRA) Office of the Criminal Justice Coordinator (CJC) To sign up for training on the new system, and for additional information about HHS Accelerator, including background materials, user guides and video tutorials, please visit www.nyc.gov/hhsaccelerator.

## ADMINISTRATION FOR CHILDREN'S **SERVICES**

# AWARDS

Human/Client Services

SPECIALIZED TEEN PREVENTIVE SERVICES -

Request for Proposals – PIN# 06814P0016001 – AMT: \$5,940,000.00 – TO: Jewish Board of Family and Children's Services, Inc., 135 W. 50th Street, New York, NY

### **CITYWIDE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES**

#### OFFICE OF CITYWIDE PURCHASING

■ SOLICITATIONS

Services (Other Than Human Services)

PUBLIC SURPLUS ONLINE AUCTION - Other -PIN# 0000000000 - DUE 12-31-14.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents,  $\,$ vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Department of Citywide Administrative Services,

66-26 Metropolitan Avenue, Queens Village, NY 11379. Donald Lepore (718) 417-2152; Fax: (212) 313-3135; dlepore@dcas.nyc.gov

s6-f25

#### ■ AWARDS

Goods

DECAL MATERIAL AND RELATED ITEMS (BRAND SPECIFIC) – Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# 8571300400 - AMT: \$121,766.54 – TO: Beacon Graphics, LLC, 189 Meister Avenue, Branchburg, NJ 08876.

■ VENDOR LISTS

Goods

**EQUIPMENT FOR DEPARTMENT OF SANITATION –** In accordance with PPB Rules, Section 2.05(c)(3), an acceptable brands list will be established for the following equipment for the Department of Sanitation:

A. Collection Truck Bodies B. Collection Truck Cab Chassis C. Major Component Parts (Engine, Transmission, etc.)

Applications for consideration of equipment products for inclusion on the acceptable brands list are available from: Mr. Edward Andersen, Procurement Analyst, Department of Citywide Administrative Services, Office of Citywide Procurement, 1 Centre Street, 18th Floor, New York, NY 10007. (212) 669-8509.

j2-d31

**●** o24

#### **DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION**

■ SOLICITATIONS

 $Construction \, / \, Construction \, \, Services$ 

CONSTRUCTION OF QUEENS WEST/ HUNTERSPOINT LIBRARY – Request for Qualifications – PIN# QUEENS WEST – DUE 11-15-13 AT 4:00 P.M.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Department of Design and Construction, 30-30 Thomson Avenue, 1st Floor, Long Island City, NY 11101. Lorraine Holley (718) 391-2601; Fax: (718) 391-2615; holleyl1@ddc.nyc.gov **☞** o24-30

■ AWARDS

Construction / Construction Services

INSTALLATION OF TRUNK AND DISTRIBUTION OF WATER MAINS IN SPRINGFIELD BOULEVARD BETWEEN LONG ISLAND EXPRESSWAY (NORTH SIDE) AND 56TH AVENUE, ETC., QUEENS – Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# 85013B0096001 – AMT: \$19,764,390.36 – TO: Trocom Construction Corp., 46-27 54th Road, Maspeth, NY 11378.

PROJECT ID: QED1002/DDC PIN: 8502011WM0011C.

HWS2013CW, RESIDENT ENGINEERING INSPECTION SERVICES FOR PRIOR NOTICE SIDEWALKS, CITYWIDE – Competitive Sealed Proposals – Judgment required in evaluating proposals – PIN# 8502013HW0056P – AMT: \$640,527.36 – TO: Mega Engineering and Land Surveying, P.C., 38-78 12th Street, Long Island City, NY 11101.

#### CONTRACTS ■ SOLICITATIONS

Construction / Construction Services

RECONSTRUCTION OF COLLAPSED OR OTHERWISE DEFECTIVE STORM, SANITARY OR COMBINED VITRIFIED CLAY PIPE SEWERS IN VARIOUS LOCATIONS, BRONX – Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# 85014B0042 – DUE 11-19-13 AT 11:00 A.M. – PROJECT NO.: SEX00201Y/DDC PIN: 8502013SE0051C. Experience Requirements.

Apprenticeship participation requirements apply to this

Bid Documents are available at: http://www.nyc.gov/buildnyc.

This bid solicitation includes M/WBE participation goal(s). For the M/WBE goals, please visit our website at www.nyc.gov/buildnyc see "Bid Opportunities." To find more about M/WBE certification visit www.nyc.gov/getcertified or call the DSBS certification helpline at (212) 513-6311. Vendor Source ID#: 85358.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Bid Document Deposit - \$35.00 per set. Company check or Money order only. No cash accepted. Late bids will not be accepted. Department of Design and Construction, 30-30 Thomson Avenue, 1st Floor, Long Island City, NY 11101. Ben Perrone (718) 391-2200; Fax: (718) 391-2615.

#### FINANCIAL INFORMATION SERVICES **AGENCY**

INTENT TO AWARD

Services (Other Than Human Services)

TERM LICENSE AND SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE -Sole Source – Available only from a single source -PIN# 127FY1400078 – DUE 11-06-13 AT 12:00 P.M. -Pursuant to Section 3-05 of the Procurement Policy Board (PPB) Rules for Sole Source procurements, the Financial Information Services Agency (FISA) intends to enter into sole source negotiations with Syncsort, Inc. for maintenance of z/OS mainframe server software. This specific z/OS mainframe server software is Syncsort's proprietary product. Syncsort's software performs high speed sorts while joining and aggregating large volumes of transactional data. As a result. FISA continues to have a need for maintenance of this software.

Vendors who believe that they are able to provide maintenance for this specific mainframe server software should express their interest via email to Contract Analyst, Sebastian Asaro at SAsaro@fisa.nyc.gov

MAINTENANCE AND USAGE FOR ONE (1)

VARIOSTREAM PRINTER – Sole Source PIN# 127FY1400077 – DUE 11-06-13 AT 12:00 P.M. -Pursuant to Section 3-05 of the Procurement Policy Board (PPB) Rules for Sole Source procurements, the Financial Information Services Agency (FISA) intends to enter into sole source negotiations with Canon Solutions America, Inc. (Canon), for maintenance and usage for one (1) Canon VarioStream printer. The VarioStream printer is Canon's proprietary product. FISA has an intensive printing operation and this printer will continue to aid the agency in fulfilling its objective. As a result, FISA continues to have a need for maintenance of this software Vendors who believe that they are able to provide maintenance and usage for the VarioStream printer should

express their interest via email to Contract Analyst, Sebastian Asaro at SAsaro@fisa.nyc.gov Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of

bids at date and time specified above. Financial Information Services Agency, 450 W. 33rd Street, 4th Floor, New York, NY 10001.

Sebastian Asaro (212) 857-1403; sasaro@fisa.nyc.gov

**☞** o24-30

# **HEALTH AND HOSPITALS** CORPORATION

The New York City Health and Hospitals Corporation is regularly soliciting bids for supplies and equipment at its Central Purchasing Offices, 346 Broadway, New York City, Room 516, for its Hospitals and Diagnostic and Treatment Centers. All interested parties are welcome to review the bids that are posted in Room 516 weekdays between 9:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. For information regarding bids and the bidding process, please call (212) 442-4018.

j1-d31

SOLICITATIONS

Services (Other Than Human Services)

MEDICARE DISPROPORTIONATE SHARE HOSPITAL CONSULTING SERVICES - Request for Proposals -PIN# DCN2140 - DUE 11-19-13 AT 5:00 P.M.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Health and Hospitals Corporation, 160 Water Street,

Room 1023, New York, NY 10038. Stuart Einbinder (646) 458-7710; Fax: (646) 458-7713;

Stuart.Einbinder@nychhc.org

# **HEALTH AND MENTAL HYGIENE**

AGENCY CHIEF CONTRACTING OFFICER

■ INTENT TO AWARD

 $Services\ (Other\ Than\ Human\ Services)$ SECURITY SERVICES - Negotiated Acquisition -

PIN# 14BS026901R0X00 - DUE 11-08-13 AT 4:00 P.M. - The Department intends to enter into a Negotiated Acquisition Extension with American Security Systems to continue provide all labor, supplies, and material required to maintain and repair security and burglar systems for DOHMH facilities within the five (5) boroughs of New York City, including all facilities owned and leased by DOHMH and to provide armed licensed security guard responders as required. The term of the contract will be from 10/01/2013 to 09/30/2013. Any vendor that believes it can provide these services for such procurement in the future is invited to submit an expression of intent which must be received no later than November 8, 2013 at 4:00 P.M. Any questions regarding this NA should be address in writing to the above Contracting Officer.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Health and Mental Hygiene, 42-09 28th Street, 17th Floor, Long Island City, NY 11101. Redmond Doreen (347) 396-6628; dredmond@health.nyc.gov

# CHEST X-RAY READING AND INTERPRETATION

**SERVICES** – Negotiated Acquisition – PIN# 14TB0223011R0X00 – DUE 10-28-13 AT 4:00 P.M. The Department's Bureau intends to enter into a Negotiated Acquisition Extension with RFRS Radiology PC, to continue to read and interpret chest x-ray of both adults and children with suspected or confirmed Tuberculosis. The term of this contract will be from 11/01/13 to 10/31/14. Any vendor that believes it can also provide these services for such procurement in the future is invited to submit an expression of interest which must be received no later than October 28, 2013 by 4:00 P.M. Expressions of Interest should be sent to DOHMH, Office of the Agency Chief Contracting Officer, 42-09 28th Street, 17th Floor, CN-30A, Queens, NY 11101-4132; Attn: Dawn Lake; dlake1@health.nyc.gov

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Health and Mental Hygiene, 42-09 28th Street, 17th Floor, CN30A, Long Island City, NY 11101.

Dawn Lake (347) 396-6759; Fax: (347) 396-6759; dlake1@health.nyc.gov

o18-24

#### PARKS AND RECREATION

#### REVENUE AND CONCESSIONS

**■ SOLICITATIONS** 

Services (Other Than Human Services)

MANAGEMENT OF THE OCEAN BREEZE TRACK AND FIELD ATHLETIC COMPLEX – Other – PIN# R149-EX – DUE 11-13-13 AT 3:00 P.M. – In Staten Island, N.Y.

There will be a recommended proposer meeting on Wednesday, October 30, 2013 at 10:00 A.M. We will be meeting at the NYC Parks offices at the Arsenal, 830 Fifth Avenue (at 64th Street), in Manhattan. If you are considering responding to this Request for Expressions of Interest, please make every effort to attend this recommended meeting.

TELECOMMUNICATION DEVICE FOR THE DEAF (TDD) 212-504-4115.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Parks and Recreation, The Arsenal-Central Park, 830 Fifth Avenue, Room 407, New York, NY 10021. Matthew Gomez-Mesquita (212) 360-8293; Fax: (212) 360-3434; matthew.gomez@parks.nyc.gov

o15-28

RENOVATION, OPERATION, AND MAINTENANCE OF A CATERING FACILITY, SNACK BAR AND/OR A RESTAURANT – Competitive Sealed Proposals – Judgment required in evaluating proposals - PIN# Q99-C-R-2013 – DUE 12-04-13 AT 3:00 P.M. – At the Heliport Building at Flushing Meadows Corona Park, Queens. There will be a recommended site visit on Tuesday, November 12, 2013 at 11:00 A.M. We will be meeting at the lobby of the facility. If you are considering responding to this RFP, please make every effort to attend this recommended

TELECOMMUNICATION DEVICE FOR THE DEAF (TDD)

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/ blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above. Parks and Recreation, The Arsenal-Central Park, 830 Fifth Avenue, Room 407, New York, NY 10021. Charlotte Hall (212) 360-3407; Fax: (212) 360-3434; charlotte.hall@parks.nyc.gov

o23-n6

# TRANSPORTATION

BRIDGES

SOLICITATIONS

Construction / Construction Services

COMPONENT REHABILITATION OF TEN BRIDGES CITYWIDE, BRONX AND MANHATTAN – Competitive Sealed Bids – PIN# 84113MBBR741 – DUE 12-05-13 AT 11:00 A.M. – Drawings are not available for download and MUST be purchased. A deposit of \$50.00 is required for the specification book and a deposit of \$50.00 is required for drawings set in the form of a certified check or money order payable to the New York City Department of Transportation.
No Cash or Personal Checks Accepted. Solicitation
documents (Specifications ONLY) will be available for download free of charge starting October 24, 2013 and ending November 21, 2013, from the City Record Website at City Record On-Line (http://a856-internet.nyc.gov/nycvendor online/home.asp) This Project is Federally aided and is subject to the provision of Title 23, U.S. code, as amended, and applicable New York State Statutes. In compliance with these provisions the minimum wages to be paid to laborers and mechanics are included in wage schedules that are set out in the bid proposal. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) will be afforded full opportunity to submit bids and the

City of New York hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement will be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder without discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age or place of residence. Prospective bidder's attention is also directed to the requirements of schedule "H" in the proposal concerning DBE participation in the contract. The schedule of proposed DBE participation is to be submitted by the apparent low bidder within seven (7) calendar days after the date of opening of bids. The DBE goal for this project is 13 percent. Non-compliance with the 7 day submittal requirement, the stipulations of Schedule "H" or submittal of bids in which any of the prices for lump sum or unit items are significantly unbalanced to the potential detriment of the Department may be cause for a determination of nonresponsiveness and the rejection of the bid. The award of this contract is subject to the approval of the New York State Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration. A Pre-Bid meeting (Optional) has been scheduled for November 13, 2013 at 10:00 A.M. in the Agency Chief Contracting Officer Bid Room, Ground Floor, 55 Water Street, NYC. All prospective bidders are requested to attend. Seats are limited. In this connection, please limit the number of attendees to maximum of two personnel per firm. Please submit the name(s) of attendees to the Project Manager no later than two (2) business days prior to the pre-bid meeting date. All questions shall be submitted in writing to Project Manager indicated below. Deadline for submission of questions is November 7, 2013. For additional information, please contact Malgorzata (Margie) Banka at (212) 839-4870.

Use the following address unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading of bids at date and time specified above.

Department of Transportation, Office of the Agency Chief Contracting Officer, Contract Management Unit, 55 Water Street, Ground Floor, New York, NY 10041. Bid Window (212) 839-9435.

#### AGENCY PUBLIC HEARINGS ON CONTRACT AWARDS

NOTE: Individuals requesting Sign Language Interpreters should contact the Mayor's Office of Contract Services, Public Hearings Unit, 253 Broadway, 9th Floor, New York, N.Y. 10007, (212) 788-7490, no later than SEVEN (7) BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO THE PUBLIC HEARING. TDD users should call Verizon relay services.

# SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Special Contract Public Hearing will be held on Monday, October 28, 2013, at 22 Reade Street, 2nd Floor Conference Room, Borough of Manhattan, commencing at 10:00 A.M. on

IN THE MATTER of a proposed contract between the NYC Department of Small Business Services (SBS) and New York City Economic Development Corporation, located at 110 William Street, 4th Floor, New York, New York, 10038, to provide citywide economic development services. The estimated amount of the contract is in excess of \$1,665,534,000.00. The term of the contract shall be for twelve (12) months from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014, unless extended at the City's option, for up to an additional twelve (12) months from July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015. PIN#: 80113S0004001.

The proposed contractor has been selected as a Sole Source Procurement, pursuant to Section 3-05 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules.

A draft copy of the proposed contract is available for public inspection at the Department of Small Business Services, 110 William Street - 7th Floor (Procurement Unit), New York, New York, 10038, from October 24, 2013 to October 28, 2013, excluding Weekends and Holidays, from 9:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M.

Anyone who wishes to speak at this public hearing should request to do so in writing. The written request must be received by the Agency within 5 business days after publication of this notice. Written requests to speak should be sent to Mr. Daryl Williams, Agency Chief Contracting Officer, Department of Small Business Services, 110 William Street - 7th Floor, New York, New York, 10038, or email to:  $\underline{procurementhelpdesk@sbs.nyc.gov}.$ 

YOUTH AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

■ PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Contract Public Hearing will be held on Thursday, November 7, 2013 at 156

LILES

JASON

C

70260

William Street, 2nd Floor Conference Room, Borough of Manhattan, commencing at 10:00 A.M. On the following:

IN THE MATTER OF 19 proposed contracts between the Department of Youth and Community Development and the contractors detailed below, for Charter School Programs. The provider, contract amount, site location and PIN numbers are indicated below. The term of the contract shall be from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014.

#### **PROVIDER**

Achievement First Aspire Charter School 982 Hegeman Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11208 PIN# 260140002306 **Amount** \$124,508.00

Brilla College Prep 413 East 144th Street, Bronx, New York 10454 PIN# 260140002307 **Amount** \$127,636.00

Brooklyn Urban Garden Charter School 500 19th Street, Brooklyn, New York 11215 PIN# 260140002308 **Amount** \$117,450.00

Canarsie Ascend Charter School 9719 Flatlands Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11236 PIN# 260140002309 **Amount** \$144,840.00

Citizens of the World Crown Heights 791 Empire Boulevard, Brooklyn, New York 11213 PIN# 260140002310 **Amount** \$100,266.00

Citizens of the World Williamsburg 424 Leonard Street, Brooklyn, New York 11222 **PIN#** 260140002311 **Amount** \$100,266.00

East Harlem Scholars Academy ll

**☞** o24

1573 Madison Avenue, Ste. 408, New York, New York 10029 PIN# 260140002312 **Amount** \$94,792.00

Great Oaks Charter School 1-3 Monroe Street, New York, New York 10002 **PIN#** 260140002313 **Amount** \$94,857.00

Harlem Hebrew Language Academy Charter School 262 W118th Street, New York, New York 10026 PIN# 260140002314 **Amount** \$111,996.00

Icahn Charter School 7 1535 Story Avenue, Bronx, New York 10473 PIN# 260140002315 **Amount** \$93,228.00

Leadership Prepatory Flatbush Charter School 1001 East 100th Street, Brooklyn, New York 11236 PIN# 26014000316 **Amount** \$82,671.00

Math, Engineering, and Science Academy (MESA) Charter HS 231 Palmetto Street, Brooklyn, New York 11221 PIN# 260140002317 **Amount** \$110,375.00

Middle Village Prep Charter School 68-02 Metropolitan Avenue, Middle Village, New York 11379 PIN# 260140002318 **Amount** \$107,704.00

New Visions Charter HS for Advanced Math and Science Ill 3000 Avenue X, Brooklyn, New York 11235 **Amount** \$110,375.00 PIN# 260140002320

New Visions Charter HS for the Humanities Ill 3000 Avenue X, Brooklyn, New York 11235 PIN# 260140002321 **Amount** \$110,375.00

South Bronx Classical Charter School ll 333 East 135th Street, Bronx, New York 10454 **PIN#** 260140002322 **Amount** \$97,920.00

The New American Academy Charter School 5800 Tilden Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11203 PIN# 260140002319 **Amount** \$101,830.00

Unity Prep Charter School 432 Monroe Street, Brooklyn, New York 11221 PIN# 260140002329 **Amount** \$107,704.00

Harlem Success Academy Charter School 3 310 Lenox Avenue, 2nd Fl., New York, New York 10027 **Amount** \$709,512.00 **PIN#** 260140002330

The proposed contractors were selected by means of the Negotiated Acquisition process pursuant to Section 3-04 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules.

copy of the proposed contract may be inspected at the Department of Youth and Community Development, Office of the ACCO, 156 William Street, 2nd Floor, New York, NY 10038 on business days between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M., from October 24, 2013 to November 7, 2013, excluding weekends and holidays.

Anyone who wishes to speak at this public hearing should request to do so in writing. The written request must be received by the Agency within 5 days after publication of this notice. Written requests to speak should be sent to Dana Cantelmi, Agency Chief Contracting Officer, 156 William Street, 2nd Floor, New York, NY 10038, DCoto@dycd.nyc.gov.

RETTRED

**☞** o24

09/03/13

# SPECIAL MATERIALS

NAME

LIDDY

LICCIARDI

# CHANGES IN PERSONNEL

WALTER

# POLICE DEPARTMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING 09/13/13

TITLE ACTION PROV EFF DATE NUM SALARY CHARLES M 70260 \$102091.0000 PROMOTED 08/29/13 NO NO J 70210 \$76488.0000 RETIRED 08/27/13

| ı | 11110        | 0110014  | _ | , 0200 | 71011J1.0000  | KLIIKLD   | 110 | 05,05,15 |
|---|--------------|----------|---|--------|---------------|-----------|-----|----------|
| ı | LIPPOLIS     | CHRISTOP | F | 70235  | \$79763.0000  | PROMOTED  | NO  | 08/29/13 |
| ı | LODGE        | PAMELA   | T | 70210  | \$76488.0000  | RETIRED   | NO  | 08/27/13 |
| ı | LONGO        | DEAN     |   | 70260  | \$112574.0000 | RETIRED   | NO  | 09/01/13 |
| ı | LOONEY       | COLLEEN  | M | 70210  | \$76488.0000  | RETIRED   | NO  | 09/01/13 |
| ı | LOPEZ        | ANA      | R | 71012  | \$33162.0000  | APPOINTED | NO  | 08/30/13 |
| ı | LOPEZ        | ANGEL    | L | 7021B  | \$98072.0000  | RETIRED   | NO  | 08/30/13 |
| ı | LOPEZ        | PEDRO    | J | 7021A  | \$87278.0000  | RETIRED   | NO  | 08/30/13 |
| ı | LOPEZ JR     | EUCLIDES |   | 7023B  | \$100054.0000 | PROMOTED  | NO  | 08/29/13 |
| ı | LOPEZ-QUILES | INEZ     |   | 70210  | \$76488.0000  | RETIRED   | NO  | 08/31/13 |
| ı | LORENZO      | MIRIAM   |   | 7026D  | \$154300.0000 | PROMOTED  | NO  | 08/29/13 |
| ı | LOSCHIAVO    | WILLIAM  | J | 7021A  | \$87278.0000  | RETIRED   | NO  | 08/31/13 |
| ı | LOUIS-JUSTE  | EDGARD   |   | 70210  | \$76488.0000  | RETIRED   | NO  | 09/06/13 |
| ı | LOVELL       | WAYNE    | L | 70235  | \$98072.0000  | RETIRED   | NO  | 08/30/13 |
| ı | LUCIA        | PHILLIP  |   | 7021D  | \$87278.0000  | RETIRED   | NO  | 09/01/13 |
| ı | LUNA         | JUAN     | F | 70210  | \$76488.0000  | RETIRED   | NO  | 08/31/13 |
| ı | LUNETTA      | ANDREW   | D | 7026E  | \$162472.0000 | PROMOTED  | NO  | 08/29/13 |
| ١ | MACK         | CAROL    |   | 60817  | \$35323.0000  | RESIGNED  | NO  | 07/31/13 |
| ١ | MAISONET     | RAUL     | P | 70260  | \$102091.0000 | PROMOTED  | NO  | 08/29/13 |
| ı | MATIDONADO   | ΔΜΔΠΟ    |   | 70235  | \$98072 0000  | CESTTES   | NO  | 09/03/13 |

\$102492,0000

|                              |                                     |                                               |                                |           |                                  |                                 |                          |                         |                                              | ŕ                      |           |                                  |
|------------------------------|-------------------------------------|-----------------------------------------------|--------------------------------|-----------|----------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------|----------------------------------------------|------------------------|-----------|----------------------------------|
| MALDONADO                    | JOLENE M 70235<br>STEPHANI M 71012  | \$79763.0000                                  | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | PRELLER                         |                          | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/31/13                         |
| MALDONADO<br>MALIN           | SUSAN 7021A                         | \$33162.0000<br>\$87278.0000                  | APPOINTED<br>RETIRED           | NO<br>NO  | 08/30/13<br>08/31/13             | PRESSLEY<br>PUELLO              | EDWARD L<br>IRENE        | 70210                   | \$87278.0000<br>\$43644.0000                 | RETIRED<br>RESIGNED    | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/31/13             |
| MALLINS                      | ROBERT J 70210                      | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | PULETZ                          | SHERYL D                 | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/31/13                         |
| MANDALA                      | THOMAS R 10234                      | \$10.7100                                     | RESIGNED                       | YES       | 08/18/13                         | PUMAREJO                        | BERNADET                 |                         | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MANTONE                      | JANE 70210                          | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | PUSATORY                        | ANTHONY E                |                         | \$20.5700                                    | RESIGNED               | YES       | 08/23/13                         |
| MANTONE                      | KENNETH J 70210                     | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | QUIGLEY                         | MATTHEW C                |                         | \$52482.0000                                 | APPOINTED              | YES       | 08/26/13                         |
| MARCAIDA                     | EUGENE L 70235                      | \$98072.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | RABASSA                         | AGUSTIN                  | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MARESCA                      | JEFFREY A 70265                     | \$146583.0000                                 | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | RABINER                         | SCOTT L                  | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MARINER                      | JOYCE V 7021C                       | \$112574.0000                                 | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | RACICOT                         | JOSEPH M                 | 7021B                   | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MAROUSEK                     | FRANK L 70210                       | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/28/13                         | RANDALL                         | CHRISTOP                 | 7021B                   | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MARQUEZ                      | LISA M 7021A                        | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | RANDAZZO                        | JOSEPH M                 |                         | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MARTINEZ                     | BIENVENI 70265                      | \$146583.0000                                 | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | RATYNSKI                        | KEVIN M                  |                         | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/31/13                         |
| MARTINEZ                     | CECIL 7021A                         | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | REEDER<br>REEDER                | JESSICA<br>THOMAS P      | 70210<br>70235          | \$76488.0000<br>\$79763.0000                 | RETIRED<br>PROMOTED    | NO<br>NO  | 08/31/13<br>08/29/13             |
| MASSA                        | SALVATOR N 7021B                    | \$98072.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | REEDY                           | CHRISTOP B FRANK J       | 71012                   | \$33162.0000                                 | APPOINTED              | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MASSEY                       | SEAN P 70210                        | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | REILLY                          |                          | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/31/13                         |
| MATHEIS                      | PETER 70210                         | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | REILLY                          | JAMES D                  | 70235                   | \$79763.0000                                 | PROMOTED               | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| MATOS                        | MICHIELL A 70210                    | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | RENNA                           | DARREN                   | 70235                   | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MAUER                        | MICHAEL R 70210                     | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | RICH                            | MITZY A                  | 71651                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MAZUR                        | JORDAN S 70235                      | \$79763.0000                                  | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | RICHARDSON                      | BOBBY W                  |                         | \$33600.0000                                 | DISMISSED              | NO        | 05/31/12                         |
| MCCALL                       | RONALD 70265                        | \$114978.0000                                 | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | RICKETTS                        | IAN B                    | 7021B                   | \$87278.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MCCLERNON                    | BRIAN C 70210                       | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | RIVAS                           | TONY                     |                         | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MCELLIGOTT                   | SEAN M 70260                        | \$102091.0000                                 | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | RIVERA                          | JOSE A                   | 70235                   | \$87278.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MCGARRY                      | DANIEL P 70210                      | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | ROBERTS                         | CARLOS A                 |                         | \$79763.0000                                 | PROMOTED               | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| MCGINN                       | PATRICK J 10234                     | \$10.7100                                     | RESIGNED PROMOTED              | YES       | 08/24/13                         | ROBERTS II                      | NEWVILLE O               | 7021A                   | \$87278.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MCGREGOR                     | CLINT A 7023B                       | \$10054.0000                                  |                                | NO        | 08/29/13                         | ROBINSON                        | LOUIS D                  | 7021B                   | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/31/13                         |
| MCKEON                       | WILLIAM J 70210                     | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | ROBINSON                        | TRAVIS K                 | 71012                   | \$33162.0000                                 | APPOINTED              | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MCMAHON                      | MICHAEL S 7026B                     | \$113554.0000                                 | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | RODRIGUEZ                       | EDWIN                    | 7021A                   | \$87278.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MCMANUS                      | MICHAEL H 70265                     | \$114978.0000                                 | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | RODRIGUEZ<br>RODRIGUEZ          | JEREMY<br>REBECCA B      | 71012                   | \$33162.0000<br>\$33162.0000                 | APPOINTED APPOINTED    | NO<br>NO  | 08/30/13<br>08/30/13             |
| MCQUISTON<br>MCRAE           | ARNITA J 71012                      | \$76488.0000<br>\$33162.0000                  | RETIRED APPOINTED              | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/30/13             | RODRIGUEZ<br>ROGERS             | RICHARD<br>BRIAN J       | 7021B                   | \$98072.0000<br>\$87278.0000                 | RETIRED<br>RETIRED     | NO<br>NO  | 08/31/13<br>09/01/13             |
| MCSLOY<br>MECCARIELLO        | JAMES M 7021B<br>CHRISTOP F 70210   | \$98072.0000<br>\$41975.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RESIGNED            | NO<br>NO  | 08/30/13<br>08/24/13             | ROGERS                          | SEAN M                   | 70260                   | \$112574.0000                                | RETIRED<br>RETIRED     | NO<br>NO  | 08/31/13<br>08/30/13             |
| MEICHSNER<br>MELENDEZ        | NANCY 70210<br>MARIA E 7021A        | \$76488.0000<br>\$87278.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED             | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/31/13             | ROLON<br>ROMAINE                | ADRIENNE                 | 71013                   | \$76488.0000<br>\$57980.0000                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/22/13                         |
| MELENDEZ                     | MARLYNLI 70235                      | \$98072.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | ROMANO                          | MICHAEL                  | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MELIAN                       | DIGNA 70210                         | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | ROSADO                          | EDWARD                   | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MELLUSI                      | ADAM J 70260                        | \$102091.0000                                 | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | ROSADO                          | JILLIAN M                | 71012                   | \$33162.0000                                 | APPOINTED              | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MENDEZ                       | PEDRO C 70210                       | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | ROSARIO JR                      | PAULINO                  | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MERCADO                      | HERIBERT 70210                      | \$76488.0000                                  | RESIGNED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | ROSS                            | SCHEWANA C               |                         | \$35323.0000                                 | RESIGNED               | NO        | 08/07/13                         |
| MERREN                       | FRANCISC D 7021A                    | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | ROTH                            | ELLEN A                  |                         | \$33600.0000                                 | RESIGNED               | NO        | 08/16/13                         |
| MERTENS                      | PAUL J 70210                        | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | ROTHE                           | KEITH A                  | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MIDDLETON                    | DENISE 70205                        | \$12.9000                                     | RETIRED                        | YES       | 09/05/13                         | ROTHMANN                        | SCOTT F                  | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/31/13                         |
| MILLS                        | DAVID B 7021A                       | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | ROTONDI                         | NICK                     | 7026D                   | \$154300.0000                                | PROMOTED APPOINTED     | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| MINAYA                       | HECTOR J 60817                      | \$35323.0000                                  | RESIGNED                       | NO        | 08/21/13                         | RUBEL                           | BRITTANY T               | 71012                   | \$33162.0000                                 |                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MINOGUE                      | DENNIS 70210                        | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | RUGGIERI                        | JOHN                     | 7023A                   | \$112574.0000                                | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MINOR                        | NICHOLAS D 70235                    | \$79763.0000                                  | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | RUIZ                            | JOSE G                   |                         | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MITCHELL III<br>MOLESAN      | WALTER T 70210<br>KAREN M 70210     | \$76488.0000<br>\$76488.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED             | NO<br>NO  | 08/30/13<br>08/30/13             | RUND                            | LLOYD D                  | 70235                   | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/06/13                         |
| MOLESAN<br>MOLSKI<br>MONAHAN | THOMAS J 70210 ANNA R 10026         | \$76488.0000<br>\$76488.0000<br>\$105448.0000 | RETIRED<br>RETIRED<br>INCREASE | NO<br>NO  | 08/30/13<br>09/01/13<br>08/22/13 | RUTHERFORD<br>RYAN II           | RICHARD J<br>PATRICK P   | 70210<br>7026B          | \$76488.0000<br>\$123836.0000                | RETIRED<br>RETIRED     | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/30/13             |
| MONTALVO III                 | VICTOR M 70210                      | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | SAAVEDRA-NORBEC<br>SALVADOR     | MARJORIE                 | 70210<br>70210          | \$76488.0000<br>\$76488.0000                 | RETIRED<br>RETIRED     | NO<br>NO  | 08/30/13<br>08/30/13             |
| MONTALVO-ARCE                | ALICE 70210                         | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | SAMAROTTO                       | MARGARET                 |                         | \$105757.0000                                | INCREASE               | NO        | 08/22/13                         |
| MORANO                       | CHRISTOP D 70235                    | \$79763.0000                                  | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | SAMUEL                          | ANTHONY C                |                         | \$100054.0000                                | PROMOTED               | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| MOREE                        | WILLIE 7021A                        | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | SANCHEZ                         | DAVID                    | 70235                   | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/31/13                         |
| MORGAN                       | KIM D 70210                         | \$76488.0000                                  | APPOINTED                      | NO        | 09/04/13                         | SANDOVAL                        | EDUARD V                 | 70235                   | \$79763.0000                                 | PROMOTED               | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| MORITZ                       | TANYA A 70260                       | \$75438.0000                                  | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/30/13                         | SANTIAGO                        | JOSE A PAUL W            | 7023B                   | \$112574.0000                                | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MORTIS                       | PAMELA 70235                        | \$98072.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | SANTORE                         |                          | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MOYA                         | ANGEL M 7021B                       | \$98072.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | SANTOS                          | JOSE                     | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| MUHAMMED                     | CORNETTA 70210                      | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | SASSO                           | MALGORZA D               | 7021A                   | \$87278.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| MULLANE                      | PAMELA A 70210                      | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | SAUNIER                         | WILLIAM F                | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/31/13                         |
| MULLIGAN                     | SEAN 70210                          | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | SAVIANO                         | DONNA M                  |                         | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/28/13                         |
| MULVEY<br>MUMPER             | STEVEN E 70235<br>JAMES R 70235     | \$79763.0000<br>\$79763.0000                  | PROMOTED PROMOTED              | NO<br>NO  | 08/29/13<br>08/29/13             | SAWICKI                         | GERARD P                 |                         | \$100054.0000                                | PROMOTED               | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| MUNDO                        | REYMUNDO 70265                      | \$114978.0000                                 | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | SCALI<br>SCARANGELLA            | MICHAEL<br>PHILIP E      | 7021B                   | \$79763.0000<br>\$98072.0000                 | PROMOTED<br>RETIRED    | NO<br>NO  | 08/29/13<br>08/25/13             |
| MUNOZ                        | FRANCISC J 70260                    | \$102091.0000                                 | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | SCHAFER                         | KRISTEN A                | 70210                   | \$79763.0000                                 | PROMOTED               | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| MURPHY                       | CHARLES 70210                       | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | SCHMOLL                         | HELMUT P                 |                         | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/03/13                         |
| MURRAY                       | JAMES R 7021B                       | \$98072.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | SCHREIBER                       | MICHELLE C               |                         | \$10.7100                                    | RESIGNED               | YES       | 08/24/13                         |
| MURRAY                       | PATRICIA 10147                      | \$42594.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/28/13                         | SCHWARTZ                        | KEVIN T                  |                         | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/31/13                         |
| MURRIA                       | DANNY 70260                         | \$102091.0000                                 | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | SCHYMANSKI                      | EDWARD T                 | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| NAMVAR                       | ROYA 30087                          | \$81000.0000                                  | APPOINTED                      | YES       | 08/18/13                         | SCOTT                           | GERALD                   | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| NAVARRO                      | JOSE A 7026D                        | \$154300.0000                                 | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | SENA                            | PHILIP J                 | 70260                   | \$102091.0000                                | PROMOTED APPOINTED     | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| NEGRON                       | ALBERTO 7021A                       | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | SEWELL                          | ERICA N                  | 71012                   | \$33162.0000                                 |                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| NELLEN<br>NELSON             | MARY ANN 7023B<br>BENJAMIN J 70235  | \$100054.0000<br>\$79763.0000                 | PROMOTED PROMOTED              | NO<br>NO  | 08/29/13<br>08/29/13             | SHAPIRO<br>SHARKEY              | DAVID                    | 7021B<br>70260          | \$98072.0000<br>\$112574.0000                | RETIRED<br>RETIRED     | NO<br>NO  | 08/31/13<br>09/01/13             |
| NESMITH<br>NEVILLE           | CURTIS 70210<br>DEBBY L 70210       | \$76488.0000<br>\$76488.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED             | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/31/13             | SHEA<br>SHELTON                 | CHERYL C                 | 70235                   | \$79763.0000<br>\$76488.0000                 | PROMOTED<br>RETIRED    | NO<br>NO  | 08/29/13<br>08/30/13             |
| NIXON<br>O'DONNELL           | LINDA F 70205<br>ANGELA M 7021A     | \$12.9000<br>\$87278.0000                     | RETIRED<br>RETIRED             | YES<br>NO | 09/01/13<br>08/30/13             | SHERIDAN                        | DANIEL P                 | 7021D                   | \$87278.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| O'DONNELL                    | KEITH W 70210                       | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | SHEVITZ<br>SHIRLEY              | BRIAN T<br>BOBBY A       |                         | \$79763.0000<br>\$98072.0000                 | PROMOTED<br>RETIRED    | NO<br>NO  | 08/29/13<br>08/31/13             |
| O'ROURKE                     | MICHAEL G 7021B                     | \$98072.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | SHIRVIS                         | JOSEPH G                 | 70210                   | \$102091.0000                                | PROMOTED               | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| O'TOOLE                      | PAUL M 70210                        | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | SIDMAN                          | LAWRENCE C               |                         | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| OCONNOR                      | PATRICIA A 7021A                    | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | SILVERSTEIN                     | DIANA L                  |                         | \$79763.0000                                 | PROMOTED               | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| OCONNOR                      | PATRICK K 7021A                     | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | SIMPKINS                        | SHARON L                 |                         | \$100558.0000                                | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| OKEEFFE                      | SEAN 70260                          | \$112574.0000                                 | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | SIMPSON                         | JANIE M                  | 10144                   | \$35285.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/11/13                         |
| OLAYA                        | CLAUDIA 21849                       | \$46455.0000                                  | APPOINTED                      | YES       | 09/03/13                         | SLADE                           | ZELUE                    | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| OLIVENCIA                    | CARMEN M 70210                      | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | SMILEY                          | BERNARD                  | 70235                   | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| OLSEN                        | KENNETH M 70235                     | \$79763.0000                                  | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | SMITH                           | BRIAN G                  | 7021B                   | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| ONEILL                       | RONALD P 7021A                      | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | SMITH                           | ROGER W                  | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| ORTEGA                       | SYLVIA Y 70210                      | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | SMYTH                           | PATRICK J                |                         | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/31/13                         |
| PAGAN<br>PAGANO              | DAVID 7021A<br>KEITH J 70210        | \$87278.0000<br>\$76488.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED             | NO<br>NO  | 08/30/13<br>09/01/13             | SOBRADO<br>SOYKA                | PABLO E<br>MARIE         |                         | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED<br>RETIRED     | NO<br>YES | 09/01/13<br>09/02/13             |
| PAGANO<br>PAGOAGA JR         | LUIGI 70235<br>DENNIS R 7021A       | \$98072.0000<br>\$87278.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED             | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/31/13             | ST FORT                         | DERBY                    | 70260                   | \$102091.0000                                | PROMOTED               | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| PAIGE                        | RODNEY M 7021A                      | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | ST FORT<br>STAGLIANO            | EDOUARDO<br>JAMES        | 70235<br>70210          | \$79763.0000<br>\$76488.0000                 | PROMOTED<br>RETIRED    | NO<br>NO  | 08/29/13<br>08/31/13             |
| PAISLEY                      | LESLIE C 10232                      | \$20.5700                                     | RESIGNED                       | YES       | 08/17/13                         | STAIANO                         | GREGORY V                |                         | \$79763.0000                                 | PROMOTED               | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| PALAJ                        | GZIM 70235                          | \$79763.0000                                  | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | STANULIS                        | RONALD E                 |                         | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/07/13                         |
| PALAZZO                      | PAUL F 70235                        | \$79763.0000                                  | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | STARKEY                         | DWANE E                  |                         | \$87278.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| PALUSKO                      | VANESSA 70210                       | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | STECKMAN                        | JOHN J                   |                         | \$123836.0000                                | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| PAPA                         | FRANK 7021A                         | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | STOECKER                        | KEVIN P                  |                         | \$87278.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| PAPIRO                       | ANTHONY A 70210                     | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | STONEBRIDGE                     | MICHAEL                  |                         | \$112574.0000                                | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| PARKER                       | MONIQUE S 7021A                     | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | STRAUB                          | CHARLES                  | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| PASTRANA                     | ROLANDO 70235                       | \$98072.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | STRUB                           |                          | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| PAULINO                      | JEFFRIES 71651                      | \$36210.0000                                  | DECEASED                       | NO        | 08/17/13                         | SULLIVAN                        | ELIZABET                 | 70235                   | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| PAVONE                       | DOMENICO 92123                      | \$281.6000                                    | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/04/13                         | SUMSKY                          | RAYMOND J                |                         | \$87278.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| PAYNE<br>PAYNTER             | MALCOLM X 70210<br>DANIELLE A 71012 | \$76488.0000<br>\$33162.0000                  | RETIRED<br>APPOINTED           | NO<br>NO  | 08/30/13<br>08/30/13             | SVENSTRUP                       | WILLIAM J                | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/04/13                         |
| PEAY                         | ASHLEY S 71012                      | \$33162.0000                                  | APPOINTED                      | NO        | 08/30/13                         | SWEAT                           | IVAN R                   | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| PECORARO                     | JOSEPH R 7021A                      | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | TAYLOR                          | CAROL K                  |                         | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/31/13                         |
| PEDERSEN                     | PAUL R 70210                        | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | TAYLOR                          | JOSEPH B                 | 71012                   | \$102091.0000                                | PROMOTED               | NO        | 08/29/13                         |
| PEDEVILLANO                  | ZOBEIDA 70210                       | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | TAYLOR                          | SHAMEEK R                |                         | \$33162.0000                                 | APPOINTED              | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| PELLEGRINI                   | SANDRA Y 70235                      | \$98072.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | TAYLOR<br>TERRY                 | TANEISHA N<br>STEPHANI D | 71012                   | \$44899.0000<br>\$33162.0000                 | RESIGNED<br>APPOINTED  | NO<br>NO  | 08/24/13<br>08/30/13             |
| PERALTA                      | YANDEIRY 70235                      | \$79763.0000                                  | PROMOTED                       | NO        | 08/29/13                         | TERZIAN                         | RICHARD P                | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| PERAZZO                      | WILLIAM F 70210                     | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/28/13                         | THOMAS                          | GEORGE M                 | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| PEREZ                        | CHRISTOP D 10234                    | \$10.7100                                     | RESIGNED                       | YES       | 08/23/13                         | THORNTON                        | ELLEN                    | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 09/01/13                         |
| PEREZ                        | GERALDO A 7021B                     | \$98072.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | TIBBATTS                        | EDDIE                    | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| PEREZ<br>PEREZ JR            | LORI-ANN F 7021A<br>JOSE A 71651    | \$87278.0000<br>\$33600.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RESIGNED            | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/11/13             | TIMMONS<br>TOLEDO               |                          | 50958                   | \$65897.0000<br>\$33162.0000                 | APPOINTED<br>APPOINTED | YES<br>NO | 09/05/13<br>08/30/13             |
| PEREZ-MATTA<br>PERRAULT      | JEANETTE 71012<br>MARK I 70235      | \$33162.0000<br>\$79763.0000                  | APPOINTED PROMOTED             | NO<br>NO  | 08/30/13<br>08/29/13             | TORRELLAS<br>TORRES             |                          | 70210                   | \$76488.0000<br>\$87278.0000                 | RETIRED<br>RETIRED     | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/31/13             |
| PERROTTO<br>PETERS           | JOSEPH G 70260<br>JACQUELI 70210    | \$102091.0000<br>\$76488.0000                 | PROMOTED<br>RETIRED            | NO<br>NO  | 08/29/13<br>09/01/13             | TORRES                          | GAMALIEL                 | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| PETERSON<br>PETRI            | RICHARD W 70210<br>JENNIFER A 70210 | \$76488.0000<br>\$76488.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED             | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/31/13             | TORRES TORRES                   |                          | 70235<br>7021D          | \$98072.0000<br>\$87278.0000                 | RETIRED<br>RETIRED     | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/31/13             |
| PEYER<br>PHILLIP             | BRANDON J 70210<br>ELIZABET 10147   | \$41975.0000<br>\$42594.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>RETIRED            | NO<br>NO  | 07/30/13<br>09/04/13             | TORRES TOSADO JR.               |                          | 70210<br>70235          | \$76488.0000<br>\$79763.0000                 | RETIRED<br>PROMOTED    | NO<br>NO  | 08/31/13<br>08/29/13             |
| PHILLIPS                     | SEAN E 70210                        | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | TRIVIGNO<br>TSANG               | ANDREW C                 | 70235                   | \$98072.0000<br>\$79763.0000                 | RETIRED<br>PROMOTED    | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/29/13             |
| PICCIRILLO                   | JOSEPH L 70210                      | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | TSISTINAS                       |                          | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| PIMENTEL                     | NELSON E 70235                      | \$98072.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | TUCCI                           |                          | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| PINNOCK                      | DEAN B 70210                        | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/30/13                         | UGBOMAH                         |                          | 70235                   | \$79984.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/31/13                         |
| PIRRERA                      | MICHAEL R 7021B                     | \$98072.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/27/13                         | VALENTIN                        |                          | 7021B                   | \$98072.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/28/13                         |
| PITAGNO                      | CHARLES J 70210                     | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 09/01/13                         | VANPUTTEN                       | NORMAN M                 | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| PLANT                        | MICHAEL P 1002A                     | \$77335.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/28/13                         | VARELA                          |                          | 70210                   | \$76488.0000                                 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/30/13                         |
| PLUNKETT<br>POLESOVSKY       | SILAS 70260<br>JOHN A 7021A         | \$102091.0000<br>\$87278.0000                 | PROMOTED<br>RETIRED            | NO<br>NO  | 08/29/13<br>09/01/13             | VARGAS<br>VAZQUEZ               | BETTY                    | 70210<br>70210<br>70235 | \$76488.0000<br>\$79763.0000                 | RETIRED<br>PROMOTED    | NO<br>NO  | 08/31/13<br>08/29/13             |
| POLLOCK<br>PORFIDIO          | BRIAN R 7021A<br>MICHAEL F 70210    | \$87278.0000<br>\$76488.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED             | NO<br>NO  | 08/31/13<br>08/30/13             | VAZQUEZ<br>VELARDI<br>VELAZQUEZ | EDWARD F                 |                         | \$79763.0000<br>\$87278.0000<br>\$87278.0000 | RETIRED                | NO        | 08/29/13<br>08/30/13<br>09/01/13 |
| POTTER<br>POU                | BRIAN 70210<br>BOLIVAR N 70235      | \$76488.0000<br>\$79763.0000                  | RETIRED<br>PROMOTED            | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/29/13             | VELAZQUEZ                       | WILLIAM                  | 7021A                   | \$87278.0000                                 | RETIRED<br>RETIRED     | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13                         |
| PRATO                        | DOMINICK 70210                      | \$76488.0000                                  | RETIRED                        | NO        | 08/31/13                         | VELEZ<br>VENDITTI               | DAVID<br>DANNY           | 7021D<br>70210          | \$87278.0000<br>\$76488.0000                 | RETIRED<br>RETIRED     | NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/31/13             |
|                              |                                     |                                               |                                |           |                                  |                                 |                          |                         |                                              |                        |           |                                  |

| JOHNSON<br>KEELING                     | KISHA<br>RUSSEL               | N           | 52366<br>70810          | \$49561.0000<br>\$30260.0000                  | DISMISSED<br>RESIGNED              | NO<br>NO         | 09/05/13<br>09/05/13             | WINNINGHAM-HYPP                       | TAMYRA                          | F      | 10124                   | \$39981.0000                                  | APPOINTED                           | NO               | 09/03/13<br><b>☞</b> o24         |
|----------------------------------------|-------------------------------|-------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------------------------|------------------------------------|------------------|----------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------|-------------------------|-----------------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|------------------|----------------------------------|
| HAYNES<br>HYLTON<br>INSHIQAQ           | JANEL<br>SELENA<br>DAVID      | N<br>M      | 52366<br>10124<br>70817 | \$49561.0000<br>\$45978.0000<br>\$47093.0000  | RESIGNED<br>RETIRED<br>PROMOTED    | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 07/09/13<br>09/01/13<br>08/25/13 | ROYZEN<br>THRUN                       | SERGIO<br>KEVIN                 |        | 13621<br>10056          | \$61853.0000<br>\$91936.0000                  | DECREASE<br>INCREASE                | YES<br>YES       | 08/25/13<br>09/01/13             |
| HARDING<br>HARDING                     | JENNIFER<br>JENNIFER          | !<br>!      | 1002D<br>1002A          | \$100421.0000<br>\$89884.0000                 | INCREASE<br>APPOINTED              | YES<br>NO        | 08/25/13<br>08/25/13             | CHARLES<br>GLOSS<br>GREEN             | FELICIA<br>CYNTHIA<br>ESTELLE   |        | 56056                   | \$34977.0000<br>\$33353.0000<br>\$81789.0000  | APPOINTED<br>RESIGNED<br>RETIRED    | NO<br>YES<br>NO  | 09/03/13<br>08/18/13<br>09/01/13 |
| GILLISON<br>GUEVARA                    | ALAN<br>EDNA                  | J<br>I      | 52295<br>52367          | \$40224.0000<br>\$72592.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>INCREASE               | NO<br>NO         | 08/25/13<br>08/04/13             | NAME ADESANYA CHARLES                 | ADEMOLA .                       |        | NUM<br>31113<br>52304   | \$ALARY<br>\$49528.0000<br>\$34977.0000       | ACTION INCREASE APPOINTED           | PROV<br>NO<br>NO | 08/18/13<br>09/03/13             |
| DUPORTE<br>EMANUEL<br>FRAZIER          | TAMARISK<br>CARL<br>KIM       | S<br>E<br>H | 56058<br>52295<br>10124 | \$54853.0000<br>\$40733.0000<br>\$29.0300     | INCREASE<br>RETIRED<br>RETIRED     | YES<br>NO<br>YES | 06/30/13<br>08/01/13<br>08/30/13 | Mare                                  |                                 |        | TITLE                   | RIOD ENDING 09/13                             |                                     | pper             | aaa                              |
| DANOIS<br>DIELINGEN                    | MICHELE<br>ANGELA             | D           | 10016<br>52369          | \$75000.0000<br>\$66518.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>RETIRED                | YES<br>NO        | 09/06/13<br>08/30/13             |                                       |                                 |        |                         | OF HOMELESS SERVI                             |                                     |                  |                                  |
| BASCOMBE<br>BATACCHI<br>COPPIN III     | CHANEL<br>KEVIN<br>RALPH      |             | 52366<br>10056<br>70810 | \$49561.0000<br>\$70395.0000<br>\$30260.0000  | RESIGNED<br>INCREASE<br>APPOINTED  | NO<br>YES<br>NO  | 08/25/13<br>08/25/13<br>08/25/13 | XHEMALALLARI<br>YUSUF                 | ALMA<br>OLUFUNMI                |        | 13632                   | \$85819.0000<br>\$31828.0000                  | INCREASE<br>DECREASE                | YES<br>NO        | 09/01/13<br>08/29/13             |
| ADDISON<br>AIKEN                       | ALLISON<br>STEPHEN            | N           | 52366<br>52295          | \$46479.0000<br>\$40372.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>RETIRED                | NO<br>NO         | 09/01/13<br>08/31/13             | WOLFE<br>WOOTEN                       |                                 |        | 12627<br>31118          | \$59536.0000<br>\$64424.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>INCREASE                | NO<br>NO         | 08/25/13<br>08/25/13             |
| NAME                                   |                               | _           | TITLE<br>NUM            | SALARY                                        | ACTION                             | PROV             | EFF DATE                         | WILLIAMS<br>WILLIS                    | MONICA                          |        | 10056<br>10124<br>10251 | \$51445.0000<br>\$28588.0000                  | INCREASE<br>INCREASE<br>APPOINTED   | NO<br>NO         | 09/01/13<br>08/25/13<br>09/03/13 |
|                                        |                               |             |                         | FOR CHILDREN'S SV                             |                                    |                  |                                  | VANAGER<br>VARGAS<br>WILLIAMS         | LINDA<br>ROXANA<br>DENISE       | В      | 52304<br>10251<br>10056 | \$40224.0000<br>\$27697.0000<br>\$90387.0000  | RETIRED<br>APPOINTED<br>INCREASE    | NO<br>NO<br>YES  | 08/24/13<br>09/03/13<br>09/01/13 |
| WRIGHT<br>WRIGHT                       | SEAN<br>SEAN                  | A           | 53054<br>53053          | \$43690.0000<br>\$39764.0000                  | INCREASE<br>APPOINTED              | YES<br>NO        | 08/04/13<br>08/04/13             | TORRES<br>ULYSSE                      | EDWIN<br>YOLENE                 | F      | 10104<br>31113          | \$31828.0000<br>\$34977.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>APPOINTED               | NO<br>NO         | 09/01/13<br>08/26/13             |
| WHITE<br>WHITE                         | LIANA<br>LIANA                | E           | 53054<br>53053          | \$43690.0000<br>\$39764.0000                  | INCREASE<br>APPOINTED              | YES<br>NO        | 08/04/13<br>08/04/13             | STOWE<br>TANNENHOLZ<br>TERMINE        | ELEANOR                         | м      | 52304<br>12627<br>91644 | \$34977.0000<br>\$69810.0000<br>\$393.6800    | RESIGNED<br>RETIRED<br>RETIRED      | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 08/22/13<br>09/01/13<br>09/03/13 |
| WARDJONO<br>WESTOVER RIVERA<br>WHEELER | HARTONO<br>LISA<br>JAMES      | A<br>J      | 12202<br>53053<br>92510 | \$44477.0000<br>\$48153.0000<br>\$292.0800    | INCREASE<br>DISMISSED<br>APPOINTED | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 08/18/13<br>09/03/13<br>07/28/13 | SMITH<br>SOW<br>STOWE                 | SUZETTE<br>ALOU<br>MARC         | A      | 13621<br>52314<br>52304 | \$59604.0000<br>\$35740.0000<br>\$34977.0000  | INCREASE<br>APPOINTED<br>RESIGNED   | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 08/26/13<br>08/11/13<br>08/22/13 |
| TIAN<br>TOUSSAINT<br>WARDJONO          | LEI<br>MICHAEL<br>HARTONO     |             | 12627<br>70360<br>12202 | \$68466.0000<br>\$98072.0000<br>\$44477.0000  | APPOINTED<br>RETIRED<br>INCREASE   | YES<br>NO        | 07/21/13<br>09/01/13<br>08/18/13 | SINGLETON<br>SMITH                    | RAYMOND<br>AVERY                |        | 1002E<br>10251          | \$108540.0000<br>\$35285.0000                 | RESIGNED<br>APPOINTED               | YES<br>NO        | 09/07/13<br>09/03/13             |
| STEPHENSON<br>TALLETTI                 | THOMAS<br>MICHAEL             | G<br>A      | 92510<br>53055          | \$292.0800<br>\$64492.0000                    | RETIRED<br>RETIRED                 | NO<br>NO         | 08/26/13<br>09/02/13             | ROGERS<br>SCHELL                      | JAMES<br>SARAH                  |        | 52304<br>21744          | \$40400.0000<br>\$63662.0000                  | RETIRED<br>APPOINTED                | NO<br>YES        | 09/01/13<br>08/25/13             |
| REED<br>SHAPIRO<br>SOKOLOWSKI          | LINDA<br>BARRY<br>ADAM        |             | 71010<br>53055<br>92510 | \$57514.0000<br>\$64492.0000<br>\$250.9600    | RETIRED<br>RETIRED<br>APPOINTED    | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 09/02/13<br>09/01/13<br>08/25/13 | REED<br>RILEY<br>RITTNER              | MARILYN<br>CLYDE<br>MICHELLE    |        | 10251<br>52311<br>30087 | \$27697.0000<br>\$49646.0000<br>\$57435.0000  | RESIGNED<br>RETIRED<br>RESIGNED     | NO<br>NO<br>YES  | 08/30/13<br>08/29/13<br>08/27/13 |
| OKONTA<br>RAHIM<br>REED                | PATRICK<br>NEZAM<br>LINDA     | s           | 31661<br>92510<br>71010 | \$45311.0000<br>\$292.0800<br>\$57514.0000    | RETIRED<br>APPOINTED<br>RETIRED    | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 09/06/13<br>07/28/13<br>09/02/13 | PROCTOR<br>RAY                        |                                 | A      | 31118<br>10251          | \$64424.0000<br>\$28588.0000                  | INCREASE<br>APPOINTED               | NO<br>NO         | 08/25/13<br>09/03/13             |
| NARDELLA<br>NINIVAGGI                  | RITA<br>THOMAS                |             | 53053<br>92510          | \$48153.0000<br>\$250.9600                    | RETIRED<br>APPOINTED               | NO<br>NO         | 08/24/13<br>07/28/13             | PHILIP<br>PINEDA                      | MARIE<br>ANTONIO                |        | 10056<br>80609          | \$112292.0000<br>\$28912.0000                 | INCREASE<br>APPOINTED               | NO<br>NO         | 08/18/13<br>08/25/13             |
| NARANJO<br>NARANJO                     | JESUS<br>JESUS                | M<br>M      | 53054<br>53053          | \$43690.0000<br>\$31931.0000                  | INCREASE<br>APPOINTED              | YES<br>NO        | 08/04/13<br>08/04/13             | PEARSON<br>PEARSON                    | LATASHA<br>LATASHA              |        | 10251<br>10104          | \$38108.0000<br>\$36602.0000                  | INCREASE<br>APPOINTED               | NO<br>NO         | 09/01/13<br>09/01/13             |
| MEI<br>MIGLIORE<br>MIRANDA             | ANTHONY<br>EUGENIO            | P           |                         | \$48127.0000<br>\$43317.0000<br>\$32.5000     | RESIGNED<br>APPOINTED<br>APPOINTED | NO<br>YES<br>NO  | 09/05/13<br>09/04/13<br>07/28/13 | ODONNELL PADILLA PAWRIA-SANCHEZ       | DAMON<br>JACQUELI<br>KAVITA     |        | 31118<br>52613<br>1002E | \$64424.0000<br>\$49528.0000<br>\$84365.0000  | INCREASE<br>RETIRED<br>RESIGNED     | NO<br>NO<br>YES  | 08/25/13<br>09/05/13<br>08/25/13 |
| MARTIN<br>MCCARTHY<br>MEI              | SHIRLEY<br>JUSTIN<br>DONGER   |             | 53053<br>70310<br>53054 | \$48153.0000<br>\$76488.0000<br>\$48127.0000  | APPOINTED<br>RETIRED<br>RESIGNED   | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 08/04/13<br>09/07/13<br>09/05/13 | NAU NEWTON-GRIMES ODONNELL            | SHARON                          |        | 95681<br>10124<br>31118 | \$121846.0000<br>\$51688.0000<br>\$64424.0000 | INCREASE<br>RETIRED<br>INCREASE     | YES<br>NO<br>NO  | 08/25/13<br>08/18/13<br>08/25/13 |
| MARTIN<br>MARTIN                       | RICHARD<br>SHIRLEY            | s           | 53054                   | \$76488.0000<br>\$49403.0000                  | RETIRED<br>INCREASE                | NO<br>YES        | 09/07/13<br>08/04/13             | MENSAH<br>MUSTAFA<br>NAII             |                                 | C      | 10124<br>31113<br>95681 | \$52421.0000<br>\$34977.0000<br>\$121846.0000 | RETIRED APPOINTED INCREASE          | NO<br>NO<br>VES  | 09/04/13<br>08/25/13             |
| LIPTON<br>MARCELIN                     | JOAN<br>ERNST                 |             | 12627<br>53053          | \$68466.0000<br>\$48153.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED                 | YES<br>NO        | 08/31/13<br>09/01/13             | MCNULTY MEMMINGER MENSAH              | HANK                            |        | 12627<br>80184<br>10124 | \$69498.0000<br>\$65698.0000<br>\$52421.0000  | RETIRED<br>INCREASE<br>RETIRED      | NO<br>NO         | 08/19/13<br>08/25/13             |
| LEE<br>LIPINSKI                        | SEAN<br>CHARLES               | ٧           | 92575                   | \$102263.0000<br>\$76488.0000                 | PROMOTED<br>RETIRED                | NO<br>NO         | 09/03/13<br>08/18/13<br>08/26/13 | MAHARAJ ELLIS<br>MCMICHAEL<br>MCNILTY |                                 | Y      | 10136<br>10104<br>12627 | \$118909.0000<br>\$31828.0000<br>\$69498.0000 | INCREASE<br>RESIGNED<br>RETIRED     | YES<br>NO<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/30/13<br>08/19/13 |
| LALJEIT<br>LAM<br>LAUREANO             | MONICA<br>REX<br>ELEANOR      |             | 53053<br>92510<br>1002C | \$45834.0000<br>\$250.9600<br>\$49189.0000    | APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED      | NO<br>NO<br>YES  | 08/04/13<br>07/28/13<br>09/03/13 | LEUNG<br>LEWIS                        | MARY<br>LA KESHA                |        |                         | \$31828.0000<br>\$88649.0000                  | APPOINTED APPOINTED                 | NO<br>YES        | 09/03/13<br>08/25/13             |
| KOSER<br>KRAUSE                        | ERIC<br>JOHN                  | R<br>E      | 92510<br>53053          | \$32.5000<br>\$31931.0000                     | APPOINTED                          | NO<br>NO         | 07/28/13<br>08/28/13             | LAPOMA<br>LATIMER                     | NICHOLAS<br>SHANIQUE            |        | 30087<br>10251          | \$57435.0000<br>\$27697.0000                  | INCREASE<br>APPOINTED               | YES<br>NO        | 08/25/13<br>09/03/13             |
| JURCSAK<br>KELLEHER                    | DANIEL<br>MATTHEW             | A<br>R      | 53053<br>70310          | \$48153.0000<br>\$76488.0000                  | INCREASE<br>RETIRED                | NO<br>NO         | 09/04/13<br>09/01/13             | KEITH<br>LANE                         |                                 |        | 10251<br>52486          | \$27697.0000<br>\$160926.0000                 | APPOINTED<br>APPOINTED<br>INCREASE  | NO<br>YES        | 09/03/13<br>09/03/13<br>09/01/13 |
| HOLLBORN<br>JOHNSON                    | JONATHAN<br>MARIETTA          | ß           | 53053<br>53055          | \$34341.0000<br>\$64492.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>RETIRED                | NO<br>NO         | 07/28/13<br>08/22/13<br>09/02/13 | JOHNSON<br>JOSEPH<br>KAMAL            | JULIA<br>LORRAINE<br>ABDUL BA   | A      | 10251                   | \$35285.0000<br>\$33138.0000<br>\$43292.0000  | RESIGNED APPOINTED APPOINTED        | NO<br>NO<br>YES  | 09/01/13<br>09/03/13<br>09/03/13 |
| GRECO<br>HARRIRAM<br>HERNANDEZ         | PAUL<br>RAVINDRA<br>ELVIS     |             | 70310<br>92510<br>92510 | \$76488.0000<br>\$292.0800<br>\$292.0800      | RETIRED APPOINTED APPOINTED        | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 08/29/13<br>07/28/13<br>07/28/13 | JOBE<br>JOHNSON<br>JOHNSON            |                                 |        | 10251<br>52312<br>10251 | \$30683.0000<br>\$58454.0000<br>\$35285.0000  | APPOINTED<br>RETIRED<br>RESIGNED    | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 05/19/13<br>08/28/13<br>09/01/13 |
| FERRIN<br>FLEISCHMANN<br>GRECO         | RICHARD<br>JEFFREY<br>PAUL    | W           | 70310<br>70360<br>70310 | \$76488.0000<br>\$98072.0000<br>\$76488.0000  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED<br>RETIRED      | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 09/06/13<br>08/31/13<br>08/29/13 | HUNTER<br>ISHMAEL                     | MARISA<br>ELIZABET              |        | 10124<br>10124          | \$45978.0000<br>\$51445.0000                  | DECEASED<br>INCREASE                | NO<br>NO         | 08/27/13<br>09/01/13             |
| EDGE<br>FANG                           | SHAMEL<br>XUELIANG            |             | 53053<br>13632          | \$39764.0000<br>\$85819.0000                  | APPOINTED<br>INCREASE              | NO<br>YES        | 08/04/13<br>08/25/13             | HARTLEY ISMA<br>HOO                   | JOSEPHIN<br>LAURANCE            |        | 52314<br>13632          | \$35740.0000<br>\$82811.0000                  | TERMINATED<br>RETIRED               | NO<br>NO         | 08/25/13<br>08/27/13             |
| DUMAY<br>EDGE                          | THOLEME<br>SHAMEL             |             | 53053<br>53054          | \$45834.0000<br>\$43690.0000                  | APPOINTED INCREASE                 | NO<br>YES        | 08/04/13<br>08/04/13             | GUINDO<br>HACK<br>HARTJE              | MOHAMED                         | N      | 52312<br>1002D<br>40526 | \$63119.0000<br>\$86916.0000<br>\$39376.0000  | RETIRED<br>INCREASE<br>INCREASE     | NO<br>YES<br>NO  | 09/07/13<br>08/25/13<br>09/01/13 |
| DUFF<br>DUMAY                          | JIM<br>THOLEME                | Z           | 53053<br>53054          | \$48153.0000<br>\$47084.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>INCREASE               | NO<br>NO<br>YES  | 07/28/13<br>08/25/13<br>08/04/13 | GRAVES<br>GREENBLATT<br>GUINDO        |                                 | L      | 52316<br>10251<br>52312 | \$64965.0000<br>\$36067.0000<br>\$63119.0000  | INCREASE<br>RETIRED<br>RETIRED      | NO<br>NO         | 09/01/13<br>08/20/13<br>09/07/13 |
| DECHBERY<br>DLUHOS<br>DORSET           | EILEEN<br>TIMOTHY<br>JAMES    | R<br>E      | 53053<br>53055<br>92510 | \$48153.0000<br>\$64492.0000<br>\$250.9600    | DISMISSED<br>RESIGNED<br>APPOINTED | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 09/03/13<br>08/27/13<br>07/28/13 | GRANDA<br>GRANDA                      | PRISCILA<br>PRISCILA            | v      | 10251                   | \$64574.0000<br>\$28588.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>RESIGNED                | YES<br>NO        | 09/01/13<br>09/01/13             |
| CHOI<br>COLON<br>DECHBERY              | HARRY<br>JOSEPH<br>EILEEN     |             | 92510<br>53053<br>53053 | \$250.9600<br>\$31931.0000<br>\$48153.0000    | APPOINTED APPOINTED DISMISSED      | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 07/28/13<br>08/04/13<br>09/03/13 | GEORGES<br>GIBSON-COPELAND            | ALDRINE<br>JENNIFER             | D      | 10104<br>10251          | \$31828.0000<br>\$31852.0000                  | APPOINTED<br>RESIGNED               | NO<br>NO         | 08/25/13<br>09/01/13             |
| BECK<br>CHARLES                        | EDWARD<br>SHAKILA             |             | 92510<br>53053          | \$250.9600<br>\$48153.0000                    | APPOINTED<br>RESIGNED              | NO<br>NO         | 07/28/13<br>08/16/13             | FAUORS<br>FELDER                      | CELESTE ANITA                   |        | 70810<br>10251          | \$30260.0000<br>\$30260.0000<br>\$32027.0000  | TERMINATED<br>RETIRED               | NO<br>NO         | 08/30/13<br>08/30/13<br>09/01/13 |
| BANDOU<br>BARRY                        | PATRICK<br>JOHN               | R           | 70310<br>70392          | \$76488.0000<br>\$85667.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>RETIRED                | NO<br>NO         | 08/27/13<br>09/05/13             | EDWARDS<br>ESCORT<br>FALCONE          | BLOSSOM<br>ROSALIND<br>ELIZABET | Α      | 52304<br>52316<br>56057 | \$40467.0000<br>\$50441.0000<br>\$40000.0000  | RETIRED<br>DISMISSED<br>APPOINTED   | NO<br>NO<br>YES  | 08/28/13<br>08/19/13<br>09/03/13 |
| ALVAREZ-DEJESUS<br>APONTE<br>BANARSEE  | DUANE<br>SURESHWA             | C           | 70310<br>92510          | \$45834.0000<br>\$76488.0000<br>\$292.0800    | RESIGNED APPOINTED                 | NO<br>NO         | 08/04/13<br>09/05/13<br>07/28/13 | DIDIO<br>DISANO                       | BLAISE<br>NORMA                 |        | 8297A<br>10251          | \$97963.0000<br>\$27697.0000                  | RETIRED<br>APPOINTED                | YES<br>NO        | 09/07/13<br>09/03/13             |
| AHMED<br>ALCOTT<br>ALVAREZ-DEJESUS     | TANVIR<br>BRIAN<br>SORAYA     | R           | 31661<br>92510<br>53053 | \$45311.0000<br>\$292.0800<br>\$45834.0000    | RESIGNED APPOINTED APPOINTED       | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 09/03/13<br>07/28/13<br>08/04/13 | DESHEERS<br>DIAZ                      | BRITNEY<br>OLGA                 |        | 10251<br>52316          | \$27697.0000<br>\$59094.0000                  | APPOINTED<br>RETIRED                | NO<br>NO         | 09/03/13<br>08/27/13             |
| NAME<br>AHMED                          | TANVIR                        | _           | NUM<br>31662            | \$56702.0000                                  | ACTION<br>RESIGNED                 | PROV<br>YES      | 09/03/13                         | DEL VALLE<br>DELEON                   | ENIDIA                          |        | 52613<br>10251          | \$52000.0000<br>\$24859.0000                  | APPOINTED<br>APPOINTED<br>APPOINTED | YES<br>NO        | 08/25/13<br>08/25/13<br>09/03/13 |
|                                        |                               |             | FOR PE                  | ERIOD ENDING 09/13                            |                                    |                  |                                  | DACRUZ<br>DAVE<br>DAVISON             |                                 | I      | 80609<br>10124<br>30086 | \$52830.0000<br>\$46054.0000<br>\$56680.0000  | INCREASE<br>RETIRED<br>APPOINTED    | NO<br>NO<br>YES  | 08/25/13<br>09/01/13<br>08/25/13 |
| TIDIAN                                 | MICHAEL                       | U           |                         | \$74857.0000<br>FIRE DEPARTMENT               | VEITER                             | MO               | U3/U1/13                         | CHRISTO<br>COLON<br>DACRUZ            | JOSEPHIN                        |        | 10026<br>52314<br>80609 | \$82500.0000<br>\$35740.0000<br>\$52830.0000  | RESIGNED APPOINTED INCREASE         | YES<br>NO        | 08/25/13<br>09/03/13<br>08/25/13 |
| ZSCHAU<br>ZURITA<br>ZYDIAK             | MICHELLE                      | C           | 7021D<br>70210<br>90760 | \$87278.0000<br>\$76488.0000<br>\$74857.0000  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED<br>RETIRED      | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 09/04/13<br>08/30/13<br>09/01/13 | CHAMBERS<br>CHANCE                    |                                 |        | 10104<br>10251          | \$38846.0000<br>\$28588.0000                  | INCREASE<br>APPOINTED               | NO<br>NO         | 08/25/13<br>09/03/13             |
| ZHENG<br>ZOCCHIA<br>ZSCHAU             | BIN QING<br>JONATHON<br>DAVID |             | 71012<br>70235<br>7021D | \$33162.0000<br>\$79763.0000<br>\$87278.0000  | APPOINTED<br>PROMOTED<br>RETIRED   | NO<br>NO         | 08/30/13<br>08/29/13<br>09/04/13 | CAMPBELL<br>CARGILL                   | MARJORIE<br>THELMA              | R      | 31113<br>10251          | \$49528.0000<br>\$32336.0000                  | INCREASE<br>RETIRED                 | NO<br>NO         | 08/25/13<br>08/24/13             |
| ZARANIS<br>ZAUGG                       | LOURDES<br>ROBERT             | A           | 70210<br>70260          | \$76488.0000<br>\$112574.0000                 | RETIRED<br>RETIRED                 | NO<br>NO         | 09/01/13<br>08/30/13             | CALDERON<br>CAMERON                   | MYRNA<br>SHIRLEY                |        | 10251<br>52316          | \$33138.0000<br>\$50294.0000                  | APPOINTED<br>DISMISSED              | NO<br>NO         | 09/03/13<br>08/26/13             |
| ZAKZEWSKI<br>ZANERI                    | JOSEPH<br>LOUIS               | J<br>J      | 70210<br>70260          | \$76488.0000<br>\$112574.0000                 | RETIRED<br>RETIRED                 | NO<br>NO         | 08/30/13<br>09/01/13             | BURGESS<br>CAAMANO                    | DENISE<br>SHARLENE              |        | 10104<br>10251          | \$31828.0000<br>\$31828.0000<br>\$27697.0000  | RETIRED<br>RESIGNED<br>APPOINTED    | NO<br>NO         | 09/01/13<br>08/22/13<br>09/03/13 |
| YOUNG<br>ZADWYDAS                      | PAUL<br>MICHAEL               | A<br>G      | 70210<br>70235          | \$76488.0000<br>\$98072.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED                 | NO<br>NO         | 08/31/13<br>09/01/13             | BONILLA<br>BULL                       | GERTRUDE                        | ĸ      | 52314<br>52314          | \$40224.0000<br>\$41166.0000<br>\$41101.0000  | RESIGNED<br>RETIRED<br>RETIRED      | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 08/23/13<br>08/28/13<br>09/01/13 |
| WROTEN<br>YEE                          | HERBERT<br>JACK               | R<br>C      | 7021A<br>70210          | \$87278.0000<br>\$76488.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED                 | NO<br>NO         | 09/01/13<br>08/30/13             | BARNES<br>BENSON<br>BETHUNE           | ANDREW<br>JAMES<br>TAWANA       | 0      | 80609<br>13611<br>31113 | \$38625.0000<br>\$59724.0000<br>\$40224.0000  | INCREASE<br>INCREASE<br>RESIGNED    | NO<br>YES<br>NO  | 09/01/13<br>08/25/13<br>08/23/13 |
| WILLIAMS<br>WILSON<br>WINDLEY          | STEVEN<br>MAXIMIN<br>TONNELLE | A<br>R<br>N | 70210<br>70210<br>60817 | \$76488.0000<br>\$76488.0000<br>\$35323.0000  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED<br>RESIGNED     | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 09/01/13<br>08/31/13<br>07/25/13 | ARNAUD<br>BACKUS<br>BARNES            | DIANE                           | Е      | 52613<br>13632          | \$50925.0000<br>\$79462.0000                  | APPOINTED<br>INCREASE               | YES<br>YES       | 08/25/13<br>08/25/13             |
| WILLIAMS<br>WILLIAMS                   | LATISHA<br>OMAR               | N<br>S      | 71012<br>70210          | \$33162.0000<br>\$76488.0000                  | APPOINTED<br>RETIRED               | NO<br>NO         | 08/30/13<br>08/30/13             | AHMED<br>ALAMEDA                      | TANVIR<br>MARILYN               |        | 20410<br>52304          | \$55345.0000<br>\$40224.0000                  | APPOINTED<br>DISMISSED              | NO<br>NO         | 09/03/13<br>08/27/13             |
| WILCOX<br>WILKERSON                    | JASON<br>JANAI                | K<br>B      | 7026F<br>71012          | \$171142.0000<br>\$33162.0000                 | PROMOTED<br>APPOINTED              | NO<br>NO         | 08/29/13<br>09/06/13             | AGBI<br>AGBI                          | FRANK                           | W      | 10248<br>52316          | \$70812.0000<br>\$58947.0000                  | INCREASE<br>APPOINTED               | YES<br>NO        | 08/25/13<br>08/25/13             |
| WHITEHEAD<br>WHITEHURST-WILL           | SHANNON                       | М           | 70210<br>70210<br>70210 | \$76488.0000<br>\$76488.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED                 | NO<br>NO         | 08/30/13<br>09/01/13             | NAME<br>ADEGOR                        | AMOS                            | 0      | <u>NUM</u><br>52314     | <u>SALARY</u><br>\$41101.0000                 | ACTION<br>APPOINTED                 | PROV<br>NO       | EFF DATE<br>08/11/13             |
| WHITE<br>WHITE<br>WHITE                | ROBERT<br>STACEY<br>WANDA     | M           | 7021A<br>70210<br>70205 | \$87278.0000<br>\$76488.0000<br>\$13.3900     | RETIRED<br>RETIRED<br>RETIRED      | NO<br>NO<br>YES  | 08/30/13<br>08/30/13<br>08/27/13 |                                       |                                 |        |                         | riof social servi                             |                                     |                  |                                  |
| WHITE<br>WHITE<br>WHITE                | DARIUS<br>PAUL<br>ROBERT      | J<br>C<br>M | 70260<br>70210<br>7021A | \$102091.0000<br>\$76488.0000<br>\$87278.0000 | PROMOTED<br>RETIRED                | NO<br>NO         | 08/29/13<br>08/31/13<br>08/30/13 | WILLIAMS                              | RUTH                            |        | 10251                   | \$35285.0000                                  | RESIGNED                            | NO               | 08/28/12                         |
| WELCH<br>WEST                          | GLEN<br>THOMAS                | L           | 70210<br>70210          | \$76488.0000<br>\$76488.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED                 | NO<br>NO         | 08/30/13<br>08/31/13             | THOMAS<br>WEBB                        |                                 | M      | 52366<br>52366          | \$49561.0000<br>\$49561.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>RESIGNED                | NO<br>NO         | 08/27/13<br>09/01/13             |
| WEINER<br>WEISS                        | CORY<br>IRA                   | R<br>R      | 70235<br>7021C          | \$79763.0000<br>\$112574.0000                 | PROMOTED<br>RETIRED                | NO<br>NO         | 08/29/13<br>09/01/13             | SMITH<br>SOSEBEE                      | TAMEEKA<br>KYLE                 | J      | 52295<br>30087          | \$34977.0000<br>\$69085.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>RESIGNED                | NO<br>YES        | 08/29/13<br>09/04/13             |
| WEADOCK<br>WEEKS                       | DANIEL<br>RONALD              | A<br>J      | 70235<br>7021A          | \$79763.0000<br>\$87278.0000                  | PROMOTED<br>RETIRED                | NO<br>NO         | 08/29/13<br>08/30/13             | SABATINO<br>SHARMA                    | ROBERT<br>MANNY                 | С      | 52295<br>52366          | \$34977.0000<br>\$46479.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>RESIGNED                | NO<br>NO         | 08/25/13<br>07/09/13             |
| WATERS<br>WATKINS                      | LUKE<br>SHAKISHA              | G           | 70210<br>7021A<br>71012 | \$76488.0000<br>\$87278.0000<br>\$33162.0000  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED<br>APPOINTED    | NO<br>NO         | 08/31/13<br>08/30/13<br>08/30/13 | REGIS<br>RODRIGUEZ<br>RUIZ SMITH      | RAMONA                          |        | 10251<br>06771          | \$40036.0000<br>\$56330.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>DISMISSED<br>RESIGNED   | NO<br>YES        | 07/08/13<br>07/08/13<br>08/25/13 |
| WARD<br>WARREN<br>WASHINGTON           | TYLER<br>MARK<br>SHIRLEY      | J<br>D<br>J | 7021A<br>7021B<br>70210 | \$87278.0000<br>\$98072.0000<br>\$76488.0000  | RETIRED<br>RETIRED<br>RETIRED      | NO<br>NO<br>NO   | 08/30/13<br>09/01/13<br>08/31/13 | PACSI<br>PEREZ<br>REGIS               | CRYSTAL ALEXIS HERALDIE         |        | 52366<br>13631<br>52408 | \$42797.0000<br>\$69529.0000<br>\$61574.0000  | RESIGNED<br>INCREASE<br>RESIGNED    | NO<br>YES<br>YES | 08/25/13<br>08/25/13<br>09/01/13 |
| WALDHELM<br>WALKER                     | ERIC<br>SHALITA               | Н           | 70235<br>10147          | \$79763.0000<br>\$42594.0000                  | PROMOTED<br>RESIGNED               | NO<br>NO         | 08/29/13<br>08/07/13             | MYERS<br>NABOZNY                      | PETER                           | M      | 56058<br>10026          | \$55813.0000<br>\$108000.0000<br>\$42787.0000 | INCREASE<br>APPOINTED               | YES<br>YES       | 06/30/13<br>09/03/13             |
| VIZZOTTI<br>WADE                       | EMANUEL<br>CECIL              | A<br>A      | 70235<br>7026D          | \$79763.0000<br>\$154300.0000                 | PROMOTED PROMOTED                  | NO<br>NO         | 08/29/13<br>08/29/13             | MCCALLA<br>MERE                       | ETHELYN<br>DANIEL               | M<br>I | 52367<br>52304          | \$77982.0000<br>\$45119.0000                  | RETIRED<br>RESIGNED                 | NO<br>NO         | 09/01/13<br>09/03/13             |
| VILASECA<br>VIRUET                     | RAMON<br>GERALD               |             | 7021A<br>90710          | \$87278.0000<br>\$278.0000                    | RETIRED<br>RETIRED                 | NO<br>NO         | 09/01/13<br>08/30/13             | MANSELL<br>MATTHEWS                   | VERONICA<br>PECOLIA             | С      | 52366<br>52367          | \$49561.0000<br>\$72797.0000                  | RESIGNED<br>RETIRED                 | NO<br>NO         | 08/29/13<br>08/31/13             |
| VERGONA                                | JOHN                          | J           | 7021A                   | \$87278.0000                                  | RETIRED                            | NO               | 09/01/13                         | LAFONTANT                             | KARINE                          |        | 52366                   | \$46479.0000                                  | RESIGNED                            | NO               | 08/25/13                         |
|                                        |                               |             |                         |                                               |                                    |                  |                                  |                                       |                                 |        |                         |                                               |                                     |                  |                                  |

# **READER'S GUIDE**

The City Record (CR) is published each business day and includes notices of proposed New York City procurement actions, contract awards, and other procurement-related information. Solicitation notices for most procurements valued at or above \$100,000 for information technology and for construction and construction related services, above \$50,000 for other services, and above \$25,000 for other goods are published for at least one day. Other types of procurements, such as sole source, require notice in The City Record for five consecutive days. Unless otherwise specified, the agencies and offices listed are open for business Monday through Friday from 9:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M., except on legal holidays.

#### NOTICE TO ALL NEW YORK CITY CONTRACTORS

The New York State Constitution ensures that all laborers, workers or mechanics employed by a contractor or subcontractor doing public work are to be paid the same wage rate that prevails in the trade where the public work is being done. Additionally, New York State Labor Law §§ 220 and 230 provide that a contractor or subcontractor doing public work in construction or building service must pay its employees no less than the prevailing wage. Section 6-109 (the Living Wage Law) of the New York City Administrative Code also provides for a "living wage", as well as prevailing wage, to be paid to workers employed by City contractors in certain occupations. The Comptroller of the City of New York is mandated to enforce prevailing wage. Contact the NYC Comptroller's Office at www.comptroller.nyc.gov, and click on Prevailing Wage Schedules to view rates.

#### CONSTRUCTION/CONSTRUCTION SERVICES OR CONSTRUCTION-RELATED SERVICES

The City of New York is committed to achieving excellence in the design and construction of its capital program, and building on the tradition of innovation in architecture and engineering that has contributed to the City's prestige as a global destination.

### VENDOR ENROLLMENT APPLICATION

New York City procures approximately \$17 billion worth of goods, services, construction and construction-related services every year. The NYC Procurement Policy Board Rules require that agencies primarily solicit from established mailing lists called bidder/proposer lists. Registration for these lists is free of charge. To register for these lists, prospective suppliers should fill out and submit the NYC-FMS Vendor Enrollment application, which can be found online at www.nyc.gov/selltonyc. To request a paper copy of the application, or if you are uncertain whether you have already submitted an application, call the Vendor Enrollment Center at (212) 857-1680.

# SELLING TO GOVERNMENT TRAINING WORKSHOP

New and experienced vendors are encouraged to register for a free training course on how to do business with New York City. "Selling to Government" workshops are conducted by the Department of Small Business Services at 110 William Street, New York, NY 10038, Sessions are convened on the second Tuesday of each month from 10:00A.M. to 12:00 P.M. For more information, and to register, call (212) 618-8845 or visit www.nyc.gov/html/sbs/nycbiz and click on Summary of Services, followed by Selling to Government.

# PRE-QUALIFIED LISTS

New York City procurement policy permits agencies to develop and solicit from pre-qualified lists of vendors, under prescribed circumstances. When an agency decides to develop a pre-qualified list, criteria for pre-qualification must be clearly explained in the solicitation and notice of the opportunity to pre-qualify for that solicitation must be published in at least five issues of the CR. Information and qualification questionnaires for inclusion on such lists may be obtained directly from the Agency Chief Contracting Officer at each agency (see Vendor Information Manual). A completed qualification questionnaire may be submitted to an Agency Chief Contracting Officer at any time, unless otherwise indicated, and action (approval or denial) shall be taken by the agency within 90 days from the date of submission. Any denial or revocation of pre-qualified status can be appealed to the Office of Administrative Trials and Hearings (OATH). Section 3-10 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules describes the criteria for the general use of pre-qualified lists. For information regarding specific pre-qualified lists, please visit www.nyc.gov/selltonyc.

# NON-MAYORAL ENTITIES

The following agencies are not subject to Procurement Policy Board Rules and do not follow all of the above procedures: City University, Department of Education, Metropolitan Transportation Authority, Health & Hospitals Corporation, and the Housing Authority. Suppliers interested in applying for inclusion on bidders lists for Non-Mayoral entities should contact these entities directly at the addresses given in the Vendor Information Manual.

#### PUBLIC ACCESS CENTER

The Public Access Center is available to suppliers and the public as a central source for supplier-related information through on-line computer access. The Center is located at 253 Broadway, 9th floor, in lower Manhattan, and is open Monday through Friday from 9:30 A.M. to 5:00 P.M., except on legal holidays. For more information, contact the Mayor's Office of Contract Services at (212) 341-0933 or visit www.nvc.gov/mocs.

#### ATTENTION: NEW YORK CITY MINORITY AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

Join the growing number of Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises (M/WBEs) that are competing for New York City's business. In order to become certified for the program, your company must substantiate that it: (1) is at least fifty-one percent (51%) owned, operated and controlled by a minority or woman and (2) is either located in New York City or has a significant tie to New York City's business community. To obtain a copy of the certification application and to learn more about this program, contact the Department of Small Business Services at (212) 513-6311 or visit www.nyc.gov/sbs and click on M/WBE Certification and Access.

#### PROMPT PAYMENT

It is the policy of the City of New York to pay its bills promptly. The Procurement Policy Board Rules generally require that the City pay its bills within 30 days after the receipt of a proper invoice. The City pays interest on all late invoices. However, there are certain types of payments that are not eligible for interest; these are listed in Section 4-06 of the Procurement Policy Board Rules. The Comptroller and OMB determine the interest rate on late payments twice a year: in January and in July.

#### PROCUREMENT POLICY BOARD RULES

ACCO Agency Chief Contracting Officer

The Rules may also be accessed on the City's website at www.nyc.gov/selltonyc

#### COMMON ABBREVIATIONS USED IN THE CR

The CR contains many abbreviations. Listed below are simple explanations of some of the most common ones appearing in the CR:

| 11000         | rigency Office Contracting Officer              |
|---------------|-------------------------------------------------|
| AMT           | Amount of Contract                              |
| CSB           | Competitive Sealed Bid including multi-step     |
| CSP           | Competitive Sealed Proposal including multi-ste |
| CR            | The City Record newspaper                       |
| DP            | Demonstration Project                           |
| DUE           | Bid/Proposal due date; bid opening date         |
| $\mathbf{EM}$ | Emergency Procurement                           |
| FCRC          | Franchise and Concession Review Committee       |
| IFB           | Invitation to Bid                               |
| IG            | Intergovernmental Purchasing                    |
| LBE           | Locally Based Business Enterprise               |
| M/WBE         | Minority/Women's Business Enterprise            |
| NA            | Negotiated Acquisition                          |
| OLB           | Award to Other Than Lowest Responsive           |
|               | Bidder/Proposer                                 |
| PIN           | Procurement Identification Number               |
| PPB           | Procurement Policy Board                        |
| PQL           | Pre-qualified Vendors List                      |
| RFEI          | Request for Expressions of Interest             |
| RFI           | Request for Information                         |
| RFP           | Request for Proposals                           |
| RFQ           | Request for Qualifications                      |
| SS            | Sole Source Procurement                         |
| ST/FED        | Subject to State and/or Federal requirements    |
|               |                                                 |

# KEY TO METHODS OF SOURCE SELECTION

CSB

The Procurement Policy Board (PPB) of the City of New York has by rule defined the appropriate methods of source selection for City procurement and reasons justifying their use. The CR procurement notices of many agencies include an abbreviated reference to the source selection method utilized. The following is a list of those methods and the abbreviations used:

Competitive Sealed Bidding including multi-step

|         | Special Case Solicitations/Summary of                |
|---------|------------------------------------------------------|
|         | Circumstances:                                       |
| CSP     | Competitive Sealed Proposal including multi-step     |
| CP/1    | Specifications not sufficiently definite             |
| CP/2    | Judgement required in best interest of City          |
| CP/3    | Testing required to evaluate                         |
| CB/PQ/4 |                                                      |
| CP/PQ/4 | CSB or CSP from Pre-qualified Vendor List/           |
|         | Advance qualification screening needed               |
| DP      | Demonstration Project                                |
| SS      | Sole Source Procurement/only one source              |
| RS      | Procurement from a Required Source/ST/FED            |
| NA      | Negotiated Acquisition                               |
|         | For ongoing construction project only:               |
| NA/8    | Compelling programmatic needs                        |
| NA/9    | New contractor needed for changed/additional         |
|         | work                                                 |
| NA/10   | Change in scope, essential to solicit one or limited |
|         |                                                      |

number of contractors

| NA/11         | Immediate successor contractor required due to    |
|---------------|---------------------------------------------------|
|               | termination/default                               |
|               | For Legal services only:                          |
| NA/12         | Specialized legal devices needed; CSP not         |
|               | advantageous                                      |
| WA            | Solicitation Based on Waiver/Summary of           |
| 777 A =       | Circumstances (Client Services / CSB or CSP only) |
| WA1           | Prevent loss of sudden outside funding            |
| WA2           | Existing contractor unavailable/immediate need    |
| WA3           | Unsuccessful efforts to contract/need continues   |
| IG            | Intergovernmental Purchasing (award only)         |
| IG/F          | Federal                                           |
| IG/S          | State                                             |
| IG/O          | Other                                             |
| $\mathbf{EM}$ | Emergency Procurement (award only):               |
|               | An unforeseen danger to:                          |
| EM/A          | Life                                              |
| EM/B          | Safety                                            |
| EM/C          | Property                                          |
| EM/D          | A necessary service                               |
| AC            | Accelerated Procurement/markets with significant  |
|               | short-term price fluctuations                     |
| SCE           | Service Contract Extension/insufficient time;     |
|               | necessary service; fair price                     |
|               | Award to Other Than Lowest Responsible &          |
|               | Responsive Bidder or Proposer/Reason              |
|               | (award only)                                      |
| OLB/a         | anti-apartheid preference                         |
| OLB/b         | local vendor preference                           |
|               | r                                                 |

#### HOW TO READ CR PROCUREMENT NOTICES

OLB/c recycled preference

 $OLB/d \quad other: (specify)$ 

Procurement notices in the CR are arranged by alphabetically listed Agencies, and within Agency, by Division if any. The notices for each Agency (or Division) are further divided into three subsections: Solicitations, Awards; and Lists & Miscellaneous notices. Each of these subsections separately lists notices pertaining to Goods, Services, or Construction.

Notices of Public Hearings on Contract Awards appear at the end of the Procurement Section.

At the end of each Agency (or Division) listing is a paragraph giving the specific address to contact to secure, examine and/or to submit bid or proposal documents, forms, plans, specifications, and other information, as well as where bids will be publicly opened and read. This address should be used for the purpose specified unless a different one is given in the individual notice. In that event, the directions in the individual notice should be followed.

The following is a SAMPLE notice and an explanation of the notice format used by the CR.

# SAMPLE NOTICE:

# POLICE

# DEPARTMENT OF YOUTH SERVICES

**■** SOLICITATIONS

Services (Other Than Human Services)

BUS SERVICES FOR CITY YOUTH PROGRAM - Competitive Sealed Bids- PIN# 056020000293 - DUE 04-21-03 AT 11:00 A.M.

 $\label{the continuous} Use the following address \ unless otherwise specified in notice, to secure, examine or submit bid/proposal documents, vendor pre-qualification and other forms; specifications/blueprints; other information; and for opening and reading$ of bids at date and time specified above.

NYPD, Contract Administration Unit, 51 Chambers Street, Room 310, New

York, NY 10007. Manuel Cruz (646) 610-5225.

| 10rk, № 110007. Mulluet Cruz (040) 010-5225.                                                                                          |                                                                                                                          |  |  |
|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|--|--|
| ITEM                                                                                                                                  | EXPLANATION                                                                                                              |  |  |
| POLICE DEPARTMENT                                                                                                                     | Name of contracting agency                                                                                               |  |  |
| DEPARTMENT OF<br>YOUTH SERVICES                                                                                                       | Name of contracting division                                                                                             |  |  |
| ■ SOLICITATIONS                                                                                                                       | Type of Procurement action                                                                                               |  |  |
| Services (Other Than<br>Human Services)                                                                                               | Category of procurement                                                                                                  |  |  |
| BUS SERVICES FOR<br>CITY YOUTH PROGRAM                                                                                                | Short Title                                                                                                              |  |  |
| CSB                                                                                                                                   | Method of source selection                                                                                               |  |  |
| PIN # 056020000293                                                                                                                    | Procurement identification number                                                                                        |  |  |
| DUE 04-21-03 AT 11:00 am                                                                                                              | Bid submission due 4-21-03 by 11:00 am; bid opening date/time is the same.                                               |  |  |
| Use the following address<br>unless otherwise specified<br>in notice, to secure, examine<br>or submit bid/proposal<br>documents; etc. | Paragraph at the end of Agency<br>Division listing providing Agency contact<br>information                               |  |  |
|                                                                                                                                       | NYPD, Contract Administration Unit<br>51 Chambers Street, Room 310<br>New York, NY 10007.<br>Manuel Cruz (646) 610-5225. |  |  |
| •                                                                                                                                     | Indicates New Ad                                                                                                         |  |  |
| m27-30                                                                                                                                | Date that notice appears in The City                                                                                     |  |  |

Record